
 
Haines Borough, Alaska                                                                                   Page 1
Agenda: June 23, 2020 

Haines Borough 
Borough Assembly Meeting #403 

 AGENDA 
 

 

June 23, 2020 -6:30pm          Location: Assembly Chambers, Public Safety Bldg. 
 
Haines Borough in person and scheduled Zoom meeting: 
 
Pursuant to the EOC recommendation adopted by the Assembly on June 9, 2020, there 
may only be 10 people in Assembly Chambers at one time- all others will be asked to 
wait in the lobby and may come into chambers to comment as called. 
 
Meeting ID: 810 9036 9209 
Password: 495312 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
        888 788 0099 US Toll-free 
Meeting ID: 810 9036 9209 
Password: 495312 
 
    1.  CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE TO THE FLAG/ROLL CALL 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA & CONSENT AGENDA 
[The following Consent Agenda items are indicated by an asterisk (*) and will be 
enacted by the motion to approve the agenda. There will be no separate discussion 
of these items unless an assembly member or other person so requests, in which 
event the asterisk will be removed and that item will be considered by the assembly 
on the regular agenda.] 
Consent Agenda: 
3 – Approve Minutes from Regular Assembly Meeting 
11C1 – Board Appointments 

*3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – 6/09/20 Regular 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Where possible, please provide your public comments in 
writing and send them to Clerk@haines.ak.us by 5:00 pm June 22. This meeting 
will be streamed live via KHNS (KHNS.org and use the button on the right side 
of its page that says “Listen Live to Haines Borough Meetings”) or attend via 
zoom (details above). Remember, your written comments will likely be more 
influential since assembly members will have the opportunity to process your 
comments prior to the meeting. 

5. ASSEMBLY COMMENTS  

6. MAYOR’S REPORT AND COMMENTS 

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS - Where possible, please provide your public hearing 
comments in writing and send them to Clerk@haines.ak.us by 5:00 pm June 22. 
For verbal testimony, public hearing sign-ups will open when this agenda is 
published. Please contact Clerk@haines.ak.us to let us know your name and the 
Ordinance you would like to address, your name will be called at the appropriate 
time. YOU MUST SIGN UP TO PROVIDE TESTIMONY AT PUBLIC 
HEARINGS. 

 
     A.   Ordinance 20-05-570 – Second Hearing 

    An Ordinance of the Haines Borough Amending Existing Haines  
    Borough Code Title 5 to sunset December 31, 2020 since   
    Ordinance 20-03-562 is effective January 1, 2021. 
    Motion: Adopt Ordinance 20-05-570. 

Jan Hill 
Mayor 
 
Jerry Lapp 
Assembly Member 
 
Gabe Thomas 
Assembly Member 
 
Stephanie Scott 
Assembly Member 
 
Zephyr Sincerny 
Assembly Member 
 
Paul Rogers 
Assembly Member 
 
Brenda Josephson 
Assembly Member 
 
 
 
 

Alekka Fullerton 
Interim Borough 
Manager/Borough Clerk 
 
 

 
 
 
  



 
Haines Borough, Alaska                                                                                   Page 2
Agenda: June 23, 2020 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARINGS – Continued 

 
    B. Ordinance 20-05-571 – Second Hearing 
 An ordinance of the Haines Borough placing a proposition on the October 6, 
 2020 Haines Borough General Election ballot to withdraw $450,000 from the 
 principal of the Permanent Fund to reimburse the general fund for lost school 
 debt reimbursement funding from the State of Alaska. 

 Motion: Adopt Ordinance 20-05-571. 
     
 C.    Ordinance 20-06-572 – Second Hearing 

 A Non-Code Ordinance of the Haines Borough assembly approving 
 the Lutak Dock lease agreement between the Haines Borough and Alaska 
 Marine Lines, Inc. 

 Motion: Adopt Ordinance 20-06-572. 
 
8. STAFF/FACILITY REPORTS 
 A.   Interim Borough Manager  - 06/23/20 Report 
 B.   Assessor – Transmittal of Certified Tax Roll 
 C.   Museum Director’s Report – April and May 2020 
 
      
9.  COMMITTEE/COMMISSION/BOARD REPORTS & APPROVED MINUTES 

A.   Planning Commission - Minutes from May 14, 2020 
 B. Assembly Committees and Liaison Reports 

 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
 
11. NEW BUSINESS 

 A. Resolutions  [Individual comments are limited to 3 minutes]- 
 

 1. Resolution 20-06-871 
  A Resolution of the Haines Borough Assembly authorizing the Interim-
  Borough Manager to execute a contract with GeoConex to replace our 911 
  equipment in the Haines Dispatch Center for an amount not to exceed 
  $35,960.00. 
  This Resolution is recommended by the Director of Public Facilities. 
  Motion: Adopt Resolution 20-06-871. 
 
 2. Resolution 20-06-872 
  A Resolution of the Haines Borough Assembly creating a CARES Act  
  Spending Plan for the Haines Borough 
  This Resolution is recommended by the Assembly Ad Hoc CARES Act   
  Committee. Assembly discussion is expected regarding proposed amendments to 
  this Resolution. 
  Motion: Adopt Resolution 20-06-872. 
 
3. Resolution 20-06-873 
  A Resolution of the Haines Borough Assembly authorizing the Borough 
  Manager to execute a construction contract with Glacier Construction, 
  dba Southeast Road Builders for the Piedad Springs Expansion for an  
  amount not to exceed $ 176,550.00 
  This Resolution is recommended by the Director of Public Facilities. 
  Motion: Adopt Resolution 20-06-873. 
 
 

  



 
Haines Borough, Alaska                                                                                   Page 3
Agenda: June 23, 2020 

 B. Ordinances for Introduction  
 Note: Five minutes allowed for the assembly to determine if a proposed  
 ordinance has merit and should be advanced to a public hearing. 
 
1.   Ordinance 20-06-573 
 An Ordinance of the Haines Borough amending Haines Borough   
 Code Title 18 to An Ordinance of the Haines Borough amending   
 Haines Borough Code Title 18 to Allow Small Farm Animals under  
 Agriculture, Personal Use. 
 This ordinance is being introduced by the Planning Commission Liaison Brenda  
 Josephson and is recommended by the Planning Commission and Borough Clerk. 
 Motion: Introduce Ordinance 20-06-573 and schedule it for two public hearings 
 7-14-20 and 7-28-20. 
 
2.   Ordinance 20-06-574 
 An Ordinance of the Haines Borough placing a proposition on the 
 October 6, 2020 Haines Borough General Election ballot to amend 
 Borough Charter Section 6 to provide for Police Emergency Response 
 Outside the Townsite. 
 This ordinance is being introduced by the Government Affairs and Services Chair 
 Brenda Josephson. Motion: Introduce Ordinance 20-06-574 and schedule it for 
 two public hearings 7-14-20 and 7-28-20. 

 
 C. Other New Business 

 
 *1.   Boards and Committee Appointments 
     (Re)appointment applications have been received for seats on various advisory boards. 
     The mayor makes the attached appointments and seeks assembly confirmation.  
     Motion: Confirm the mayor’s (re)appointments of Kim Chetney and Sue Chasen 
     to the Museum Board and Tara Bicknell to the Chilkat Center Advisory Board for 
     terms ending 11/30/22. 
 

  2.    EOC Discussion and Review of Resolution 20-03-854A   
     Update on Townhall meeting and recommendations from the EOC. 

 
  3.    Adopt Small Business and Non-Profit Grant Application 

     The Commerce Committee considered this application and referred it to the  
     Borough Assembly for approval. The application is still under legal review and  
     administration would appreciate the opportunity to make non-substantive  
     changes as recommended. 

 
12.  CORRESPONDENCE 
 A. Solicited Letter from Catholic Community Services with respect to senior 

lunches. 

13.  SET MEETING DATES 

14. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

15.  ANNOUNCEMENTS/ASSEMBLY COMMENTS/DIRECTION TO THE MANAGER 

16.  ADJOURNMENT 



 
Haines Borough 

Borough Assembly Meeting #402 
June 9, 2020 

 MINUTES 
 

1.   CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE TO THE FLAG/ROLL CALL:  Mayor HILL called the meeting to 
order at 6:30 p.m. in the Assembly Chambers and led the pledge to the flag. 

Present: Mayor HILL, Assembly Members Stephanie SCOTT, Brenda JOSEPHSON, 
Zephyr SINCERNY, Jerry LAPP, Paul ROGERS and Gabe THOMAS.  
 
Staff Present: Alekka FULLERTON/Interim Manager/Borough Clerk, Jila STUART/Finance 
Director, Steven AUCH/Tourism Director, Carolann WOOTON/EOC 

Visitors Present: Dawn DRETOS, Erika MERKLIN, Kay CLEMENTS, Ceri GODNEZ/CVN, 
Debra SCHNABEL, Don TURNER, Russ LYMAN, Evelyna VIGNOLA, Paul NELSON, Annette 
SMITH, Ron JACKSON, Thom ELY, Liz HEYWOOD, Margaret FRIEDENAUR, Chip LENDE, 
Heather LENDE, Julie EVANS, Tom MORPHET, Sara CHAPELL, Tracey HARMON and others. 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA & CONSENT AGENDA 
The following Items were on the published consent agenda indicated by an asterisk (*) 

3 – Approve Minutes from Regular and Special Assembly Meeting 
Motion: JOSEPHSON moved to “approve the agenda/consent agenda,” and the agenda was 
amended to add item 10 under Unfinished Business – Planning and Zoning Hire; the amended 
motion carried unanimously. 
 *3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – 5/26/20 Regular and 06/02/20 Special.  
Note: The motion adopted by approval of the consent agenda: “approve minutes of the 5/26/20 
regular and 06/02/20 special borough assembly meeting.”  

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS: DRETOS, MERKLIN, CLEMENTS, VIGNOLA, NELSON, SMITH, 
JACKSON, ELY, HEYWOOD, FRIEDENAUER, C. LENDE, H.LENDE, EVANS, MORPHET, 
CHAPELL 

5. ASSEMBLY COMMENTS: SINCERNY 

6. MAYOR’S REPORT AND COMMENTS:   
Mayor HILL reminded Haines Borough residents to complete the Census, thanked them for 
cleaning up the community and for the community garden efforts in Mosquito Lake, positive 
COVID test in Haines. 

7.   PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 

      A.   Ordinance 20-04-566 – Third Hearing 
 An Ordinance of the Haines Borough, Alaska, Providing for the Establishment 
 and Adoption of the Operating Budget, Capital Budget, and Capital 
 Improvement Plan of the Haines Borough for the Period July 1, 2020 through 
 June 30, 2021. 

 Mayor HILL opened the public hearing at 7:14 pm and the following people   
 spoke: ELY, DROTOS, NELSON, LYMAN, HARMON 

 Hearing no further comments, the Mayor closed the public hearing at 7:26 pm. 
Motion: LAPP moved to “Adopt Ordinance 20-04-566,”  
Motion: JOSEPHSON moved to “amend the ordinance to fund the Mosquito Lake Community 
Center in the amount of $10,000 from CARES Act money to keep it open through the end of the 
year for food security,”  
  Primary Amendment: SCOTT moved to “add another $10,000 of Borough Funds to 
  continue it as a community center,” and the motion 3 -3 split with LAPP, JOSEPHSON 
  and THOMAS opposed and the Mayor breaking the tie in the affirmative. 
And the motion, as amended, carried unanimously. 

Draft 



June 9, 2020 
Page 2 of 4 

 

 

7.   PUBLIC HEARINGS – Continued 
 
Motion: JOSEPHSON moved to “decrease the allocation to the Museum General Fund 01-15 by 
$20,208 for a total borough allocation of $180,000,” and the motion carried unanimously. 
Motion: JOSEPHSON moved to “decrease the police department fund 02-02 by $35,000,” and 
the motion and the motion carried 5-1 with THOMAS opposed. 
And the main motion, as amended, carried 5-1 with SINCERNY opposed. 
 
 B.   Ordinance 20-04-567 – Third Hearing 

 An Ordinance Of The Haines Borough, Providing For The Addition Or 
 Amendment Of Specific Line Items To The FY20 Budget (#4).  

 Mayor HILL opened the public hearing at 8:05 pm and the following people   
 spoke: ELY 
 Hearing no further comments, the Mayor closed the public hearing at 8:06 pm. 

Motion: JOSEPHSON moved to “Adopt Ordinance 20-04-567,” and the motion carried 
unanimously in a roll call vote. 
 
  C.   Ordinance 20-05-570 – First Hearing 

 An Ordinance of the Haines Borough Amending Existing Haines  Borough Code 
 Title 5 to sunset December 31, 2020 since Ordinance 20-03-562 is effective 
 January 1, 2021. 
 Mayor HILL opened and closed the public hearing at 8:09 pm since no member of the 
 public signed up to speak. 

Motion: THOMAS moved to “Amend Ordinance 20-05-570 to include section 5.20 and to provide 
that the ordinance is effective when adopted,” and the motion carried unanimously. 

 
D.   Ordinance 20-05-571 – First Hearing 
 An ordinance of the Haines Borough placing a proposition on the   
 October 6, 2020 Haines Borough General Election ballot to    
 withdraw $450,000 from the principal of the Permanent Fund to   
 pay the Borough’s FY21 School Bond Debt Payment. 
 

   Mayor HILL opened the public hearing at 8:11 pm and the following people   
 spoke: ELY, TURNER 

 Hearing no further comments, the Mayor closed the public hearing at 8:14 pm. 

Motion: SINCERNY moved to “Amend Ordinance 20-05-571 as recommended by Finance 
Committee,” and the motion carried unanimously 4-2 with LAPP and ROGERS opposed. 

 
 E.    Ordinance 20-06-572 – First Hearing 

 A Non-Code Ordinance of the Haines Borough assembly approving 
 the Lutak lease agreement between the Haines Borough and Alaska Marine    
 Lines, Inc. 

   Mayor HILL opened and closed the public hearing at 8:23 pm since no member of the 
 public signed up to speak on this matter. 

 
8. STAFF/FACILITY REPORTS 
     A.  Interim Borough Manager – 06/09/20 Report 

FULLERTON summarized her written report and answered questions from the 
assembly. 

Motion: THOMAS moved to “Direct the Manager to look into removal of the car at 5 mile Haines 
Highway,” and the motion carried unanimously. 



June 9, 2020 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 

8. STAFF/FACILITY REPORTS - Continued 
 
Motion: JOSEPHSON moved to “Direct the Manager to begin looking at a contract to hire a land 
manager for land sales to assist in Borough land sales,” and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
Motion: JOSEPHSON moved to “Direct the Manager to move forward to sell the Human 
Resource building,” and the motion carried unanimously. 

 
Motion: LAPP moved to “Direct the Borough Manager to start negotiating with AIA to obtain 
clear title to the Chilkat Center,” and the motion carried unanimously. 

 
 

9.  COMMITTEE/COMMISSION/BOARD REPORTS & APPROVED MINUTES 
A.   Tourism Advisory Board - Minutes from April 30, 2020 
B.   Port and Harbor Advisory Committee – Minutes from February 27, 2020 
 

10.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 This matter was postponed from the 05/12/20 Assembly Meeting and added to this agenda 

during Agenda Approval. 
 A. Hiring of Planning and Zoning Technician 
Motion: JOSEPHSON moved to “Authorize the Interim Borough Manager to hire the Planning 
and Zoning Technician position,” and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
11.   NEW BUSINESS    
  A. Resolutions - None 
     B. Ordinances for Introduction - None 
 C. Other New Business 

 
1. EOC Discussion – Townhall meeting Wednesday, June 10 at 6:00 pm 

Motion: SCOTT moved to “Adopt the recommendations of EOC as described in their 06/08/20 
Memo,”  
  Primary Amendment: THOMAS change #7 to “until further notice” and the motion 
  carried unanimously. 
And the motion, amended, carried unanimously. 

 
2. CARES Act Funding Recommendation 

Motion: JOSEPHSON moved to “Authorize the purchase of an ambulance in the amount of 
$278,152 from CARES Act money,” and the motion carried unanimously. 
Motion: JOSEPHSON moved to “Approve the CARES Act funding as outlined in the memo with a 
change in the amount of the ambulance and correcting the amount of Borough Health to 
accommodate the change” and the motion carried 5-1 with SINCERNY opposed. 
 

3. Manager’s Performance Evaluation Form 
Motion: ROGERS moved to “Adopt the Manager’s Performance Evaluation Form and require this 
be used August 1 annually and have it completed by the first meeting in September,”  

 Primary Amendment: JOSEPHSON moved to change the dates to June 15 with a 
 return date of July 15,” and the motion carried unanimously. 

and the motion, to Adopt the Manager’s Performance evaluation form and require that it be used 
June 15 annually and have it completed by July 15, carried unanimously.  
 



June 9, 2020 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 

12.  CORRESPONDENCE 
 A.   Press Release from Ocean Beauty Icicle 
 B.   Southeast Conference Resolution re UA  
 

13.  SET MEETING DATES 
A.   Referral of Borough Manager Hire to Personnel Committee already scheduled – 
 6/23/20 at 5:30 pm 

     B.  GASC Committee Meeting 6/18/20 at 6:30 pn 
Motion: JOSEPHSON moved to “Refer MOU with SEARCH for COVID testing to the GAS 
Committee,” on Thursday, June 18 at 6:30 pm and the motion carried unanimously. 

 
14.  PUBLIC COMMENTS: TURNER, SCHNABEL, HEYWOOD, ALTEN, FRIEDENAUER, ELY, 

AUCH, DRETOS 
 

15.  ANNOUNCEMENTS/ASSEMBLY COMMENTS/DIRECTION TO THE MANAGER: SCOTT, 
LAPP, THOMAS 
 

16. ADJOURNMENT – 9:50 pm 
       ____________________________ 

ATTEST:       Janice Hill, Mayor 
 
__________________________________ 
Alekka Fullerton, Borough Clerk 



Haines Borough
Assembly Agenda Bill

Agenda Bill No.:  
Assembly Meeting Date:

Business Item Description: Attachments:
Subject:

Originator:

Originating Department:

Date Submitted:

Full Title/Motion:

Administrative Recommendation:

Fiscal Impact:

Expenditure Required Amount Budgeted Appropriation Required Projected Impact to Future 
Operating Budgets

$ $ $

Comprehensive Plan Consistency Review:
Comp Plan Goals/Objectives:

Consistent: Yes     No

Summary Statement:

Referral:
Referred to: Referral Date:
Recommendation: Meeting Date:

Assembly Action:
Meeting Date(s): Public Hearing Date(s):

Postponed to Date:

20-1023

    06/23/2020

Borough Clerk

Borough Administration

5/15/2020

1. Ordinance 20-05-570 as amended 6/09/20

Motion: Adopt Ordinance 20-05-570..

This resolution is recommended by the Mayor and the Borough Clerk.

0 See below Reduced maintenance costs

This is a "housekeeping" ordinance.

On 2/26/19, Ordinance 18-09-512, which was a major rewrite of Title 5, was adopted. Part of that adoption was a
sunset provision effective 3/1/20. The sunset date was later amended to 4/30/20.

On 4/28/20, Ordinance 20-03-562 made further changes to Title 5. The effective date of those further changes were
postponed until January 1, 2021.

I believe the intention was to keep the "old" provisions of Ordinance 18-09-512 in effect until the "new" provisions of
20-03-562 take effect. This Ordinance accomplishes just that.

0

6/09/20, 6/23/205/26/2020

Extend Sunset of Title 5 to 12/31/20

7A



HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
ORDINANCE No. 20-05-570 

An Ordinance of the Haines Borough Amending Existing Haines Borough Code Title 5 
to sunset December 31, 2020 since Ordinance 20-03-562 is effective January 1, 2021. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY: 

Section 1. Classification.  This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and 
the adopted amendment shall become a part of the Haines Borough Code. 

Section 2. Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance or any application thereof 
to any person or circumstance is held to be invalid, the remainder of this ordinance 
and the application to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

Section 3. Effective Date. This ordinance is effective upon adoption and extends the 
sunset of Ordinance 18-09-512 until December 31, 2020. 

Section 4. Amendment of Chapter 5.01. Chapter 5.01 of the Haines Borough Code of 
Ordinances is amended as follows: 

NOTE: Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
  STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED 

Chapter 5.01 
GENERAL PROVISIONS1 

1 The provisions of Ord. 18-09-512 expire April 30 December 31, 2020. 

Section 5. Amendment of Chapter 5.02. Chapter 5.02 of the Haines Borough Code 
of Ordinances is amended to read as follows: 

Chapter 5.02 
BUSINESS LICENSES1 

1  The provisions of Ord. 18-09-512 expire April 30 December 31, 2020. 

Section 6. Amendment of Chapter 5.03. Chapter 5.04 of the Haines Borough Code 
of Ordinances is amended to read as follows: 

Chapter 5.04 
PERMIT APPLICATION PROCESS1 

1  The provisions of Ord. 18-09-512 expire April 30 December 31, 2020. 

Section 7. Amendment of Chapter 5.08. Chapter 5.08 of the Haines Borough Code 
of Ordinances is amended to read as follows: 

Chapter 5.08 
Transient and Itinerant Merchants, Vendors and Special Events1

1  The provisions of Ord. 18-09-512 expire April 30 December 31, 2020. 

Draft 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 20-05-570 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 

Section 8. Amendment of Chapter 5.18. Chapter 5.18 of the Haines Borough Code 
of Ordinances is amended to read as follows: 

Chapter 5.18 
Commercial Tour Permit1 

 

1 The provisions of Ord. 18-09-512 expire April 30 December 31, 2020. 
 
 
 Section 9. Amendment of Chapter 5.20. Chapter 5.20 of the Haines Borough Code 
 of Ordinances is amended to read as follows: 

Chapter 5.20 
Commercial Passenger Vehicle Requirements1 

 

1  The provisions of Ord. 18-09-512 expire April 30 December 31, 2020. 

Section 10. Amendment of Chapter 5.22. Chapter 5.22 of the Haines Borough Code 
of Ordinances is amended to read as follows: 

Chapter 5.22 
Commercial Passenger or Tour Vehicle Parking Permits1 

 
1  The provisions of Ord. 18-09-512 expire April 30 December 31, 2020. 

Section 11. Amendment of Chapter 5.24. Chapter 5.24 of the Haines Borough Code 
of Ordinances is amended to read as follows: 

Chapter 5.24 
Commercial Helicopter Ski Tours, Commercial Ski Productions and Special 

Ski Competition Events1 

 
1  The provisions of Ord. 18-09-512 expire April 30 December 31, 2020. 

 
ADOPTED BY A DULY CONSTITUTED QUORUM OF THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY THIS 23rd DAY 
OF JUNE, 2020.  

             
       ______________________________ 
ATTEST:       Janice Hill, Mayor 
 
 
__________________________ 
Alekka Fullerton, Borough Clerk 
 
Date of Introduction:      05/26/20   
Date of First Hearing:     06/09/20  
Date of Second Hearing: 06/23/20 



Haines Borough
Assembly Agenda Bill

Agenda Bill No.:  
Assembly Meeting Date: 

Business Item Description: Attachments:
Subject:

Originator:

Originating Department:

Date Submitted:

Full Title/Motion:

Administrative Recommendation:

Fiscal Impact:

Expenditure Required Amount Budgeted Appropriation Required Projected Impact to Future 
Operating Budgets

$ $ $

Comprehensive Plan Consistency Review:
Comp Plan Goals/Objectives:

Consistent: Yes     No

Summary Statement:

Referral:
Referred to: Referral Date:
Recommendation: Meeting Date:

Assembly Action:
Meeting Date(s): Public Hearing Date(s):

Postponed to Date:

 20-1026
  6/23/20

Permanent Funds

Zephyr Sincerny

Borough Assembly

5/25/20

1. Ordinance 20-05-571 (as amended 6/09/20)

Motion: Amend Ordinance 20-05-571 as recommended by the Finance Committee.

This ordinance is recommended by the Interim Borough Manager.

0 0 Lease approved by later ordinance

On 5/26/20, the Haines Borough Assembly introduced Ordinance 20-05-571 and also referred it to the Finance
Committee for review.

On 6/2/20, the Finance Committee reviewed the Ordinance and asked staff to make recommendations to Ordinance
language to accomplish its stated goals. Staff provided the Finance Chair with the proposed language who approved
its submission to the assembly.

0

Finance
Amend the Ordinance as provided by staff.

5/26/20
06/09/20

06/09/20, 06/23/205/26/20, 6/09/20, 6/23/20

Ballot Proposition to Withdraw a portion of

7B



HAINES BOROUGH 
ORDINANCE No. 20-05-571 

 
An ordinance of the Haines Borough placing a proposition on the October 6, 
2020 Haines Borough General Election ballot to withdraw $450,000 from the 
principal of the Permanent Fund to reimburse the general fund for lost school 
debt reimbursement funding from the State of Alaska.  
 

WHEREAS, in the FY20 fiscal year, the Haines Borough experienced a loss of $450,337 of 
school debt reimbursement funding from the State of Alaska when the governor vetoed 
50% of budgeted funding to municipalities from the State of Alaska; and 
 
WHEREAS, in the FY21 fiscal year, the Haines Borough will experience a loss of 70% 
school debt reimbursement from the State of Alaska which would have amounted to 
$896,297; and 
 
WHEREAS, property tax revenues have been diverted from the Areawide General Fund 
(01) to the School GO Bond Fund (76) to offset the loss of debt reimbursement from the 
State; and 
 
WHEREAS, due to economic effects of the COVID-19 pandemic the Haines Borough 
anticipates significantly decreased sales tax revenues in FY21 further reducing revenues 
in the Areawide General Fund; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY: 
 
 Section 1.  Classification.  This ordinance is a non-code ordinance authorizing placing a 

proposition on the ballot for the 2020 general municipal election. 
 
 Section 2.   Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance or any application thereof to 

any person or circumstance is held to be invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and 
the application to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

 
 Section 3.  Purpose.  It is hereby determined to be for a public purpose and in the 

public interest of the Haines Borough to place a proposition on the October 6, 2020 
regular Haines Borough General Election ballot to reimburse the Fund 01 Fund Balance 
up to $450,000 for the FY21 school bond debt payment.  
 

 Section 4. The Borough shall submit the following proposition to the qualified voters of 
the Haines Borough at the October 6, 2020 Haines Borough General Election:  
 

PROPOSITION No. x 
 

USE A PORTION OF PERMANENT FUND PRINCIPAL  
TO REIMBURSE FOR SCHOOL BOND DEBT PAYMENT 

 
Shall the Haines Borough withdraw $450,000 of the permanent 
fund principal to reimburse the Areawide General Fund for a 
portion of the FY20 and FY21 school bond debt payment? 

Section 5.  Section 4 of this ordinance shall become effective only if the proposition 
described in Section 4 is approved by a majority of the qualified voters voting on the 

Draft 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 20-05-571 

Page 2 of 2 
 

proposition at the October 6, 2020 Haines Borough General Election and shall take 
effect thirty days after certification of the results of the election.  
 

ADOPTED BY A DULY CONSTITUTED QUORUM OF THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY THIS __ 
DAY OF JUNE, 2020. 

      ______________________________ 
       Jan Hill, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
_____________________________ 
Alekka Fullerton, CMC, Borough Clerk 
 
Date of Introduction:      05/26/20   
Date of First Hearing:     06/09/20 Amended 
Date of Second Hearing: 06/23/20 
 



Haines Borough
Assembly Agenda Bill

Agenda Bill No.:  
Assembly Meeting Date:

Business Item Description: Attachments:
Subject:

Originator:

Originating Department:

Date Submitted:

Full Title/Motion:

Administrative Recommendation:

Fiscal Impact:

Expenditure Required Amount Budgeted Appropriation Required Projected Impact to Future 
Operating Budgets

$ $ $

Comprehensive Plan Consistency Review:
Comp Plan Goals/Objectives:

Consistent: Yes     No

Summary Statement:

Referral:
Referred to: Referral Date:
Recommendation: Meeting Date:

Assembly Action:
Meeting Date(s): Public Hearing Date(s):

Postponed to Date:

 20-1025

   6/23/20

Alaska Marine Lines for Roll-On/Roll-Off Facility

Borough Manager

Administration

5/29/20

1.
2.
3.

Ordinance 20-06-572 
Proposed Lease Agreement
Updated Appraisal received 6/16/20

Motion: Adopt Ordinance 20-06-572.

This ordinance is recommended by the Borough Manager.

0 0 Lease approved by later ordinance

Objective 2B, Page 56-57

The Haines Borough Assembly on 7/10/18 adopted Resolution 18-07-764 endorsing a Memorandum of
Understanding with Alaska Marine Lines, Inc. for the lease of tidelands and uplands to support construction of a
marine freight transfer facility in Lutak Inlet.

HBC 14.16.160 provides that the final lease terms are subject to approval by the assembly by ordinance. The 
attached draft has been reviewed by the Borough Attorney and the terms have been accepted by AML. The 
completion of this ordinance and the attached lease will allow AML to start construction on the Ro-Ro.

Proposed Lease and updated appraisal attached.

0

06/09/20, 06/23/2006/02/20, 06/09/20, 06/23/20

Authorize Interim Manager to sign lease with

7C



HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
ORDINANCE No. 20-06-572 

A NON-CODE ORDINANCE OF THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY 
APPROVING THE LUTAK DOCK LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE HAINES 
BOROUGH AND ALASKA MARINE LINES, INC. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY: 

Section 1. Classification.  This ordinance is for the specific purpose of approving a 
single agreement and shall not become a part of the Haines Borough Code. 

Section 2.  Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance or any application thereof to 
any person or circumstance is held to be invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and the 
application to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

Section 3. Effective Date.  This ordinance is effective upon adoption. The lease attached 
hereto is effective as of July 1, 2020. 

Section 4. Purpose.  This ordinance approves the terms of the Lease and Preferential 
Use Agreement for Construction and Operation of Roll-On/Roll-Off Facility and Associated 
Upland Activies between the Haines Borough and Alaska Marine Lines, Inc.   

Section 5. Authority.  This ordinance is adopted under the authority granted the 
Assembly to approve negotiated leases by HBC 14.16.160. 

Section 6. Approval . The attached Lease and Preferential Use Agreement for 
Construction and Operation of Roll-On/Roll-Off Facility and Associated Upland Activities 
between the Haines Borough and Alaska Marine Lines, Inc. is hereby approved.  The 
interim manager and mayor are hereby authorized to take all such steps as may be 
necessary to finalize and sign the Lutak Land Lease on behalf of the Haines Borough. 

ADOPTED BY A DULY CONSTITUTED QUORUM OF THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY THIS __th 
DAY OF JUNE, 2020. 

______________________________ 
ATTEST: Janice Hill, Mayor 

_________________________________ 
Alekka Fullerton, CMC, Borough Clerk 

Date Introduced:  
Date of First Public Hearing:      
Date of Second Public Hearing: 

Draft 



1 

Haines Borough 
═════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════

LEASE AND PREFERENTIAL USE AGREEMENT FOR 

CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION 

OF ROLL-ON/ROLL-OFF FACILITY AND ASSOCIATED 

UPLAND ACTIVITIES 
═════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════

DATE: MAY 28, 2020 

Between: Haines Borough, an Alaska municipal corporation (“Landlord or Borough”) 
103 Third Avenue S. 
Haines, Alaska 99827 

And: Alaska Marine Lines, Inc., a Washington corporation ("Lessee") 
18000 International Blvd., Suite 800 
Seattle, WA 98188 

SECTION A.  TIDELANDS 

Landlord leases to Lessee and Lessee leases from Landlord a portion of  tidelands real property within 
Tract A, ATS 1464, consisting of approximately one acre immediately northward of the Landlord-owned 
Lutak Dock at 2112 Lutak Road, Haines, Alaska and more particularly described on Exhibit 1 attached 
hereto (“the Tidelands Property” or “the Tidelands”), on the terms and conditions stated below. 

A.1. TERM OF LEASE (HBC 14.16.080) 

A.1.1 Original Term.  The term of lease for the Tidelands shall be for a period of thirty (30) 
years commencing July 1, 2020 and expiring June 30, 2050, unless sooner terminated as hereinafter 
provided.  

A. 1.2 Possession.  Lessee's right to possession and obligations under this lease shall commence 
on the first day of the term. 

A.1.3 Renewal Option.  Any renewal preference granted the lessee is a privilege, and is neither 
a right nor bargained-for consideration. Lessee shall have the option to extend this lease for one (1) 
renewal term of five (5) years provided: 

A.1.3.a. The Lessee or the Lessee’s assignee makes written application therefor at least 
90 days prior to expiration of the original term; 

A.1.3.b. The Lessee is not in default under the lease; 

A.1.3.c. The proposed use is compatible with this lease, current use classification and  
zoning  provisions; 

A.1.3.d. Mutually agreeable terms, consistent with the provisions of Borough code  
governing lease terms, are negotiated by the borough and Lessee   
and approved by the borough assembly. 



2 

A.2.   RENT 

A.2.1 Base Rent.  Rent terms are governed by HBC 14.16.090 that sets base rates at $500 or 
10% of appraised value, whichever is more. The appraised value of the Tidelands per sq. ft. as 
determined by Integra Realty Resource of Seattle, WA of October 31, 2018 is $2.00, or $87,120 
per acre. 

A.2.2 Annual Rent payments.  Lessee shall pay to Landlord as base rent $8,712 annually.  
Rent for the first year of the initial term of this lease is due and payable on or before the first day 
of the term.    After the first year, annual rent is payable within 30 days of the anniversary of the 
first day of the term and annual rent may be paid in one payment on the anniversary date, or in 
two equal payments at the Lessee’s option, in which case the first payment shall be due on the 
anniversary date and the second payment is due on or before the date that is six-months after the 
anniversary date. Annual Rent due may be increased or decreased as provided in A.2.4.below. 

 A.2.3  Additional Rent.  Any/all  property taxes, insurance costs and utility charges that Lessee 
may be required to pay by the terms of this lease shall be paid in addition to the annual rent .  

   A.2.4 Adjustment of Rent.  The annual rental payable shall be subject to adjustment by the 
 assembly on the fifth anniversary of the date of the lease and each anniversary date thereafter 
 which is divisible by the number five. All adjusted rates shall be computed at 10 percent of the 
 fair market value of the Tidelands (excluding the value of the Facility and any other Lessee 
 improvements). Such value shall be determined by an appraisal conducted pursuant to Haines 
 Borough Code.  The new rental amount shall be effective at the beginning of the five-year 
 interval to which it applies. 

A.2.5 Renewal Rent.  Annual rental for any renewal term shall be equal to the minimum annual 
rent required by the Haines Borough Code as a percentage of appraised value of the land at the 
commencement of the renewal term. 

A.3. USE OF THE TIDELANDS PROPERTY 

A.3.1 Compliance with Law.  Lessee’s use of the Tidelands Property shall conform to all 
ordinances of the borough, including any applicable zoning ordinance and with all state and 
federal regulations, rules, and laws, as the code or any such rules, regulations, or laws may affect 
the activity upon or associated with the Tidelands. 

A.3.2     Permitted Use.  The Tidelands Property shall be used exclusively for the purpose of 
constructing, operating and maintaining a roll-on, roll off cargo facility as further defined in 
Section A.3.3 below. 

A.3.3 Improvements. Consistent with the Scope of Work attached as Exhibit 2, Lessee shall 
not later than two (2) years from the commencement of the term substantially complete
construction on the Tidelands of a barge docking facility with roll-on/roll-off capability suitable 
for handling standard cargo containers and breakbulk freight (“the Facility”) to Lessee’s design 
specifications subject to Landlord’s approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  
Lessee may construct other improvements on the Tidelands that support construction, 
maintenance and operation of the Facility, with Landlord’s prior written approval, which approval 
shall not be unreasonably withheld. All barge ramps and associated equipment are, and shall 
remain, the personal property of Lessee.  Utilization or development for other than marine cargo 



3 

related uses, without written consent of Landlord, shall constitute a violation of the lease and 
subject the lease to cancellation at any time. 

A.3.4   Public Use of Facility Lessee shall allow the public access to use the Facility subject 
always to Lessee’s preferential use rights, pursuant to a market rate schedule of fees and charges 
to be adjusted periodically, as approved.    

[End of Section A. Tidelands] 

SECTION B.  UPLANDS 

Landlord leases to Lessee and Lessee leases from Landlord a portion of real property adjacent to the 
Tidelands consisting of approximately one-half acre (21,780 sq. ft.) , and more particularly described on 
Exhibit 3 attached hereto (“ Uplands Property” or “Uplands”), on the terms and conditions stated below. 

B.1. TERM OF LEASE (HBC 14.16.080) 

B.1.1 Original Term.  The term of lease for Uplands shall be for a period of ten (10) years       
commencing July 1, 2020, unless sooner terminated as hereinafter provided. 

B.1.2 Possession.  Lessee's right to possession and obligations under this lease shall commence 
on the first day of the term. 

B.1.3 Renewal Option.  Any renewal preference granted the Lessee is a privilege, and is 
neither a right nor bargained-for consideration. Lessee shall have options to extend this lease for 
five (5) successive renewal terms (each a “Renewal Term”) of five (5) years provided: 

B.1.3.a. The lessee or the lessee’s assignee makes written application therefor at least 90  
days prior to the expiration of the original term or Renewal Term; 

B.1.3.b. The lessee is not in default under the lease; 

B.1.3.c. The proposed use is compatible with the lease, current use classification and  
zoning provisions; 

B.1.3.d. Mutually agreeable terms, consistent with the provisions of Borough code  
governing lease terms, are negotiated by the borough and Lessee and approved by the  
borough assembly. 

B.2. RENT 

B.2.1 Base Rent.  Rent terms are governed by HBC 14.16.090 that sets base rates at $500 or 10% 
of appraised value, whichever is more.  The appraised value of the Uplands per sq. ft. as determined 
by Integra Realty Resource of Seattle, WA of October 31, 2018 is $8.00, or $348,480 per acre. 

B.2.2 Annual Rent payments. Lessee shall pay to Landlord as base rent for the first year of the 
term $ 17,424 payable within 60 days of commencement of this lease.  For each year thereafter 
annual rent may be paid in one payment on the anniversary date, or in two equal payments at the 
Lessee’s option, in which case the first payment is due on the anniversary date, and the second 



4 

payment is due on or before the date that is six-months after the anniversary date. Annual rent due 
may be increased or decreased as provided in B.2.4 below. 

B.2.3 Additional Rent.  All insurance costs, property tax and utility charges that Lessee may be 
required to pay by the terms of this lease shall be paid in addition to the annual rent . 

B.2.4 Adjustment of Rent.  The annual rental payable pursuant to any lease issued under the 
provisions of this chapter shall be subject to adjustment by the assembly on the fifth anniversary of 
the date of the lease and each anniversary date thereafter which is divisible by the number five. All 
adjusted rates shall be computed at 10 percent on the fair market value of the land and 
improvements owned by the borough and leased thereunder. Such value shall be determined by an 
appraisal made by the assessor or land manager or a certified appraiser hired by the borough and 
reviewed by the assembly, whose decision is final. The new rental amount shall be effective at the 
beginning of the five-year interval to which it applies.  

B.2.5 Adjustment of leased space.  Upon advance written request of Lessee, the leased premises 
may be decreased, however the minimum uplands lease shall be 0.5 acre.   Any decrease of space 
leased shall be effective no earlier than three (3) months after receipt of Lessee’s written request.  
Lessee shall bear all survey costs associated with a decrease in the area leased.  Subject to 
availability, and upon advance written request,   Lessee may lease additional space immediately 
adjacent to the leased premises up to a maximum of one additional acre.  Any increase in the leased 
premises shall be effective no earlier than three (3) months after receipt of Lessee’s written request.  
The option to increase the area of the leased premises may not be exercised at any time after 
Landlord has provided notice of Landlord’s intention to undertake reconstruction of the Lutak 
Dock.   Rent shall be adjusted to equal no less than 10% of the most current appraised value of the 
additional acreage leased.  

B.2.6  Renewal Rent.  Annual rental for any renewal term shall be equal to the minimum annual 
rent required by the Haines Borough Code as a percentage of appraised value of the land at the 
commencement of the renewal term. 

B.3. USE OF THE PROPERTY. 

B.3.1 Public Access.  Landlord expressly reserves the right to grant easements or rights-
of-way across the leased premises, including but not limited to an easement to provide a safe 
traffic corridor to allow public access and use of Lutak Dock, if it is determined in the best 
interest of the Landlord to do so, provided such easements or rights-of-way shall not 
unreasonably interfere with LESSEE’s use and occupancy of the leased premises (including 
Uplands and the Tidelands) as authorized by this lease. Lessee shall not unduly restrict nor 
impede passage of authorized persons on easements or traffic corridors identified in Exhibit 
3.   

B.3.2 Compliance with Law.  Lessee shall conform to all applicable laws and regulations of 
any public authority affecting the Uplands Property and the use thereof and correct at Lessee's own 
expense any failure of compliance created through Lessee's fault or by reason of Lessee's use.  
Uplands shall be utilized for purposes within the scope of the land use classification, the terms of 
this lease, and in conformity with ordinances of the borough, including any applicable zoning 
ordinance.   

B.3.3 Restrictions on Use.  The Uplands shall be used for the exclusive purpose of handling 
and storing cargo containers and associated equipment, and breakbulk freight shipped and received 
in the course of operating and maintaining the Facility.  Utilization or development by Lessee for 
other than the allowed uses, without the written consent of Landlord, shall constitute a violation of 



5 

the lease and subject the lease to cancellation after twenty (20) days’ written notice to Lessee.  If 
the default is of such a nature that it cannot be completely remedied within the 20- day period, 
Lessee shall be in compliance with this provision if Lessee begins correction of the default within 
the 20-day period and thereafter proceeds with reasonable diligence and in good faith to effect the 
remedy as soon as practicable. 

B.3.4 Improvements.  Lessee may construct improvements on the Uplands Property, with 
Landlord’s prior written approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. All 
improvements constructed by Lessee shall remain the property of Lessee, and may be removed at 
Lessee’s expense upon termination of this Lease.   

[End of Section B. Uplands] 

SECTION C.  PREFERENTIAL USE  

Lessee vessels calling to load and discharge containerized cargo on a scheduled basis shall be entitled to 
preferential berthing rights at the Facility in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement.  

C.1. PREFERENTIAL BERTHING RIGHTS 

C1.1.    Lessee shall have the preferential right to use the Facility for purposes of mooring, docking, 
and loading or discharging cargo on or from Lessee vessels, including ships, barges, or other 
watercraft which are owned, operated, or chartered by or for Lessee or any affiliated or related 
company, or which are used in connection with any  Lessee freight operations, or a vessel owned or 
operated by an entity with which Lessee has a connecting carrier, consortium, or rationalization 
agreement, if, and to the extent that, said vessel is carrying cargo on Lessee’s behalf (collectively 
“Lessee Vessel”) provided that the Borough reserves the right to maintain access for all users of the 
Lutak Dry Storage Dock (“Lutak Dock) and the Facility via a public right-of-way across the 
Leased Premises and dock area adjacent to the Facility when a Lessee Vessel is not actively 
engaged in loading or unloading operations.   

C1.2. The preferential right of use provided by this paragraph is defined to mean that Lessee 
shall be accorded the right, after furnishing a vessel schedule at least 12 hours in advance to the 
Borough Harbormaster, to berth a vessel at the Facility.  

  C1.3. Lessee agrees Delta Western fuel barges will have priority use of Lutak Dock berths.       
          Lessee’s vessels will be accommodated at Lutak as needed on a space available basis. 

  C1.4. Lessee agrees that during the term of this Agreement its Haines representative, will  
furnish the Borough Harbormaster with information as to the position, estimated time of arrival in  
Haines, and estimated port time of any Lessee vessel desiring to berth at the Facility or at Lutak  
Dock at least 12 hours in advance of the estimated time of arrival. 

C.2. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS.   

The Borough specifically reserves to itself and for non-Lessee vessels rights to use and occupy the Lutak 
Dock, or portions thereof, subject to the priorities of use accorded to Lessee under this lease agreement. 
The Borough agrees that it will issue tariffs governing the rates, charges, and conditions for the use of the 
Lutak Dock and the Facility by others, and shall assess reasonable rates and charges to users of the 
Facility. 



6 

C.3 BERTHING OF LESSEE VESSELS.    

In addition preferential berthing for loading and unloading cargo as provided above, barges owned, 
chartered, or operated by or on behalf of Lessee shall be allowed to berth at the Facility while not engaged 
in cargo operations, unless the Borough Harbormaster requests their removal to allow the use of Lutak 
Dock by other vessels. In such event, the Borough Harbormaster will notify the vessel captain as early as 
possible of the time the vessel must clear the Facility. 

SECTION D.  TERMS GOVERNING A.  B AND C. 

These terms apply to both Tidelands and Uplands (collectively “the Property). 

D.1   RESTRICTIONS ON USE.  The Property shall be used only for purposes within the scope of the 
land use classification of the Property, the terms of this lease, and in conformity with ordinances of the 
borough, including any applicable zoning ordinance. Use for any other purpose shall constitute a violation 
of the lease and subject the lease to cancellation after twenty (20) days’ written notice to Lessee.  If the 
default is of such a nature that it cannot be completely remedied within the 20- day period, Lessee shall be 
in compliance with this provision if Lessee begins correction of the default within the 20-day period and 
thereafter proceeds with reasonable diligence and in good faith to effect the remedy as soon as 
practicable.  Lessee’s use of the leased premises shall conform to all ordinances of the borough, including 
any applicable zoning ordinance. 

D.2. TARIFF REVENUE 

D.2.1  Lessee shall publish a tariff schedule of rates for  dockage, wharfage, handling and storage 
and shall make the Facility available for public use in accordance with its published tariff.  

D.2.2.  Lessee shall pay Landlord discounted wharfage in accordance with Port of Haines 
Terminal Tariff, FMC No. 3 Wharfage Rates, as follows: 

Remainder of Year 2020 100% Discount 
Year 2021 100% Discount 
Year 2022 75% Discount 
Year 2023 50% Discount 
Year 2024 and ongoing 25% Discount 

Transshipped/transloaded cargo shall be  subject to a single-move, one-time wharfage charge at 
 the same rate.   

D2.3.  Lessee shall submit to the Borough within ten days of the end of each month a statement 
detailing the vessel dockage and cargo tonnage handled during the previous month. 

D2.4   Lessee shall prepare or cause to be prepared bills of lading detailing all cargo loaded on or 
from each container on any Lessee Vessel using the Premises.  Lessee shall preserve all bills of 
lading and other records evidencing Lessee’s use of the Premises for not less than three (3) years 
after expiration of this Agreement. 

D2.5   Amounts payable by Lessee for facilities or services under this Agreement supersede any 
charges for the same facilities or services under the Tariff for the Port of Haines.   



 

7 
 

 
D.3   ENVIRONMENTAL 
 
 D.3.1 The term Environmental Law shall mean any federal, state, or local statute, 
 regulation, or ordinance or any judicial or other governmental order pertaining to the 
 protection of health, safety or the environment or in any way regulating or controlling the 
 handling, use, transportation, storage, possession, treatment or disposal of Hazardous 
 Substances. The term Hazardous Substance shall mean any hazardous, toxic, ignitable, 
 explosive, corrosive, reactive, carcinogenic, infectious or radioactive substance, waste, 
 and material as defined or listed by any Environmental Law and shall include, without 
 limitation, petroleum oil and its fractions. 
 

 D.3.2  Lessee shall not cause any Hazardous Substance to be located, used, spilled, 
 leaked, disposed of, or otherwise released on or under the Property.  Lessee may locate, 
 store or use on the Uplands only those Hazardous Substances and in the quantities 
 typically located, stored, transported or used in the prudent and safe operation of the uses 
 permitted, including petroleum fuels.  Lessee shall comply with all environmental laws 
 and exercise a high degree of care in the use and handling of Hazardous Substances in 
 transfer of cargo and maintenance of the facility. 
 
 D.3.3  Lessee shall immediately notify Landlord upon becoming aware of the following: (a) any 
 spill, leak, disposal or other release of a Hazardous Substance on, under or adjacent to the 
 Property required to be reported to the United States Coast Guard (“USCG”) or the State of 
 Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation (“ADEC”) and shall provide Landlord with a 
 copy of any written notification submitted to USCG or ADEC; (b) any notice or communication 
 from a governmental agency or any other person relating to any Hazardous Substance on, under 
 or adjacent to the Property; or (c) any violation of any Environmental Law with respect to the 
 Property or Lessee’s activities on or in connection with the Property. 
 
 D.3.4  In the event of a spill, leak, disposal or other release of a Hazardous Substance on or 
 under the Property caused by Lessee or any of its contractors, agents or employees or invitees, or 
 the suspicion or threat of the same, Lessee shall: (a) immediately undertake all emergency 
 response necessary to contain, clean up and remove the released Hazardous Substance; (b) 
 promptly undertake investigatory, remedial removal and other response action necessary or 
 appropriate to insure that any Hazardous Substances contamination is eliminated to Landlord’s 
 reasonable satisfaction; and (c) provide Landlord copies of all correspondence with any 
 governmental agency regarding the release (or threatened or suspected release) or the response 
 action, and a detailed report documenting all such response action. 
 
 D.3.5  Upon expiration or sooner termination of this lease for any reason, unless otherwise 
 agreed by Landlord, Lessee shall remove all Hazardous Substances and facilities used for the 
 storage or handling of Hazardous Substances from the Property and shall restore the affected 
 areas by repairing any damage caused by the installation or removal of the facilities. 
 
 D.3.6  Lessee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Landlord, its employees and agents 
 and the respective successors and assigns of each of them from and against all claims, demands, 
 liabilities, damages, fines, losses, costs (including without limitation the cost of any investigation, 
 remedial, removal or other response action required by Environmental Law) and expenses 
 (including without limitation attorney fees and expert fees in connection with any trial, appeal, 
 petition for review or administrative proceeding) arising out of or in any way relating to the 
 presence of  Hazardous Substances on or under the Property by Lessee to the extent caused by 
 Lessee or any of its contractors, agents or employees or invitees. Lessee’s obligations under this 



8 

section shall survive the expiration or termination of this lease for any reason. Landlord’s rights 
under this section are in addition to and not in lieu of any other rights or remedies to which 
Landlord may be entitled under this lease or otherwise. 

D.3.7  Landlord shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Lessee, its employees and agents and 
the respective successors and assigns of each of them from and against all claims, demands, 
liabilities, damages, fines, losses, costs (including without limitation the cost of any investigation, 
remedial, removal or other response action required by Environmental Law) and expenses 
(including without limitation attorney fees and expert fees in connection with any trial, appeal, 
petition for review or administrative proceeding) arising out of or in any way relating to the use, 
treatment, storage, generation, transport, release, leak, spill, disposal or other handling of 
Hazardous Substances on or under the Property prior to, or unrelated to, Lessee’s or its 
contractors’, agents’ or employees’ or invitees’ activities on  the Property. Landlord’s 
obligations under this section shall survive the expiration or termination of  this lease for any 
reason. Lessee’s rights under this section are in addition to and not in lieu of any other rights or 
remedies to which Lessee may be entitled under this lease or otherwise. 

D.4    LIABILITY AND GENERAL INDEMNITY 

D.4.1. Liens.  Lessee shall pay as due all claims for work done on and for services rendered or 
material furnished to the Property, and shall keep the Property free from any liens. If Lessee fails to 
pay any such claims or to discharge any lien, Landlord may do so and collect the cost as additional 
rent. Such action by Landlord shall not constitute a waiver of any right or remedy which Landlord 
may have on account of Lessee's default. 

D.4.2 Duty to Inspect.  Lessee shall inspect the Property prior to commencement of the 
Original Term. Landlord agrees to provide reasonable access to the site during regular business 
hours for Lessee’s inspection.   

D.4.3 Assumption of Risk by Lessee.  Lessee expressly assumes the risk of loss, damage, or 
injury arising from the existing conditions of the Property and the adjacent Lutak Dock facility.  
Lessee has reviewed a report detailing the condition of the Lutak Dock authored by PND Engineers 
in 2014 based on an inspection conducted by Echelon Engineering  (“the Report”) which report 
stated “it is the opinion of PND Engineers, Inc. that the structure has reached the end of its credible 
60-year service life” and the Haines Lutak Dock Roll On Roll Off Ramp Condition Assessment 
Final Report of R&M Engineers dated January 2018 (R&M Report) which concludes “it is unlikely 
that the existing dock will remain usable for another 10 years.  Localized failure can be expected at 
any time” and accepts all risk of loss or damage to Lessee’s property and improvements associated 
with any failure of the Lutak Dock including resulting loss of use of the Property or improvements 
placed on the Property. Lessee acknowledges this Agreement does not obligate Landlord to repair, 
maintain or replace Lutak Dock.  Lessee shall indemnify and defend Landlord from any third party 
claim, loss, or liability arising out of or related to any claim based on the Property or any hazardous 
condition of the Property, directly related to Lessee’s activities, while in the possession or under the 
control of Lessee. However, Lessee assumes no responsibility for maintenance and repair of the 
Lutak Dock.  This obligation shall survive the expiration or termination of this Lease Agreement. 

D.4.4 No Warranty/No Representation.  Landlord makes no representations with respect to 
the conditions of the Property or the adjacent Lutak Dock facility other than those contained in the 
Report.  The parties hereto expressly agree that the risk that actual physical conditions at the 
Property or adjacent Lutak Dock facility are materially different from the expected physical 
conditions at the Property is borne solely by the Lessee. 



9 

D.4.5 Landlord’s Indemnification.  Landlord shall indemnify and defend Lessee from any 
claim, loss, or liability arising out of or related to any negligent activity of Landlord on the Property  
or any hazardous condition of the Property while in the possession or under the control of Landlord. 
This indemnification obligation does not apply to any claim, loss or liability arising out of or related 
to the current or future condition of the Lutak Dock or Landlord’s maintenance and repair of the 
Lutak Dock.   

D.4.6 Removal of Existing Structures and other work to be performed by Landlord.  
Landlord shall remove the existing structures (one 20’ X 40’ and one 16’ X 32’) and perform other 
work as identified in Exhibit 4 attached in coordination with AML. 

D.5. INSURANCE 

During the term of this lease Lessee shall carry, at Lessee's cost, (i) comprehensive general liability 
insurance with limits of not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence covering all risks arising directly or 
indirectly out of Lessee's activities on or any condition of the Property, and covering claims of Landlord 
against Lessee under the indemnity obligations assumed by Lessee in this lease; (ii) property damage and 
fire insurance, if applicable, for the replacement value of any improvements on the Property and on 
Lessee’s personal property located on the Property; and (iii) worker’s compensation in accordance with 
applicable law as well as employer’s liability coverage of not less than $1,000,000, and, if applicable, 
long shore and harbor workers’ coverage; (iv) pollution insurance, $2,000,000 combined single limit per 
loss applicable to bodily injury, property damage, including loss of use of damaged property or of 
property that has not been physically injured or destroyed; cleanup costs; and defense, including costs and 
expenses incurred in the investigation, defense or settlement of claims.  Coverage shall apply to sudden 
and non-sudden pollution conditions resulting from the escape or release of petroleum products, smoke, 
vapors, fumes, acids, alkalis, toxic chemicals, liquids or gases, waste materials, or other irritants, 
contaminants, or pollutants.  All of the required insurances (except for worker’s compensation and 
USL&H) shall name Landlord as an additional insured and waive subrogation in favor of Landlord.  
AML’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects Borough, its officers, officials, 
employees and volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by Borough, its officers, officials, 
employees and volunteers shall be excess of AML’s insurance and shall not contribute to it.  Insurance is 
to be placed with reputable insurers qualified to do business in Alaska.  Certificates evidencing such 
insurance and bearing endorsements requiring 30 days' written notice to Landlord prior to any decrease in 
limits or cancellation shall be furnished to Landlord upon request.   

D.6. TAXES AND UTILITIES 

D.6.1 Property Taxes.  Lessee shall pay all real property taxes and special assessments levied 
against the Property.    

D.6.2. Special Assessments.  If an assessment for a public improvement is made against the 
Property, Landlord may elect to cause such assessment to be paid in installments, in which case 
all of the installments payable with respect to the lease term shall be treated the same as ad 
valorum real property taxes. 

D.6.3. Contest of Taxes.  Lessee shall be permitted to contest the amount of any property tax or 
assessment as provided for in Haines Borough Code.  

D.6.4. Payment of Utilities Charges.  Lessee shall pay when due all charges for services and 
utilities incurred in connection with the use, occupancy, operation, and maintenance of the 
Property, including, but not limited to, charges for fuel, water, sewer, gas, and electricity.  If any 
utility services are provided by or through Landlord, charges to Lessee shall be comparable with 
prevailing rates for comparable services. If the charges are not separately metered or stated, 



10 

Landlord shall apportion the charges on an equitable basis, and Lessee shall pay its apportioned 
share on demand. 

D.7 MAINENANCE OF PREMISES  

D.7.1 Lessee shall, at its own expense, provide all routine preventive maintenance, 
repairs, and replacements to any Lessee structures, including: any Lessee buildings, 
container cranes, container handling equipment, Lessee installed electric systems and 
equipment, and the container storage area.  Lessee shall be responsible for obtaining its 
own janitorial services for Lessee facilities on the Premises, if any. 

D.7.2 Snow RemovalLessee will provide all snow removal and de-icing of the Lessee 
leased areas at Lutak. Lessee shall keep the Premises clean, orderly, and free of rubbish. If 
Lessee fails to adequately remove snow, ice, or debris, the Borough may furnish the 
necessary equipment and manpower to provide this service in which event Lessee shall 
promptly pay the Borough's billings for such services. 

D.7.3 Lessee shall provide the Borough Harbormaster a semi-annual maintenance and 
repair report on any single incident of damage or repair over ten thousand dollars 
($10,000). 

D.7.4. Within thirty (30) days after each anniversary of the date of this lease agreement, 
Lessee  and the Borough agree to inspect the Premises and prepare a report describing the 
condition of the Premises and specifying any items in need of repair. The party responsible 
for those repairs shall start those repairs within thirty (30) days after the report is prepared 
and shall promptly complete them. 

D.8.   EMINENT DOMAIN; DESTRUCTION, RECONSTRUCTION OF LUTAK DOCK 

D.8.1 Partial Taking.  If a portion of the Property is condemned, this lease shall continue on 
the following terms: 

D.8.1.a  Lessee shall be entitled to all of the proceeds of condemnation relating to 
improvements constructed by Lessee, and Landlord shall be entitled to all of the proceeds 
of condemnation relating to the unimproved Property and Lutak Dock.  

D.8.1.b. After the date on which title vests in the condemning authority, the rent shall be 
reduced in proportion to the reduction in value of the Property as an economic unit on 
account of the partial taking. If Landlord and Lessee are unable to agree on the amount of 
the reduction of rent, the amount shall be determined as provided in Section D.13. 

D.8.2. Total Taking.  If a condemning authority takes all the Property or a portion sufficient to 
render the remaining Property reasonably unsuitable for the use that Lessee was then making of the 
Property, this lease shall terminate as of the date the title vests in the condemning authorities.  
Landlord shall be entitled to all the proceeds of condemnation, and Lessee shall have no claim 
against Landlord as a result of the condemnation.   

D.8.3. Sale in Lieu of Condemnation.  Sale of all or part of the Property to a purchaser with 
the power of eminent domain in the face of a threat or probability of the exercise of the power shall 
be treated as a taking by condemnation. 



11 

D.8.4. Damage and Destruction. If the Property is damaged or destroyed so that Lessee is 
unable to occupy the Property for its permitted use, Landlord may terminate this lease effective as 
of the date of the damage or destruction by giving Lessee written notice within 5 days of the date of 
the damage or destruction. 

D.8.5 Reconstruction of Lutak Dock.  In the event the Borough embarks on a (re)construction 
project regarding Lutak Dock, Landlord shall provide Tenant at least 360 days written notice of 
Landlord’s intent and the parties agree to negotiate any effects of such project on this lease.   
Landlord will take reasonable steps to minimize interference with Lessee’s business operations on 
the Property.  If Lutak Dock reconstruction does prevent Lessee from using the Property for marine 
cargo operations rent shall be abated during all such periods Lessee is unable to use the Property for 
marine cargo operations.  Such rent abatement shall be Lessee’s sole remedy for loss of use of the 
Property resulting from dock reconstruction. 

D.9. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING 

No part of the Property may be assigned, mortgaged, or subleased by Lessee without the prior written 
approval of the Borough Assembly, provided however, that Lessee may sublet or license use of portions 
of the Property to its affiliated companies and customers in the ordinary course of its business. In the 
event Landlord consents to an assignment at any time during this lease, Lessee shall continue to remain 
liable to Landlord under the terms of this lease, unless otherwise agreed in writing. Any 
assignment/sublease shall be in writing and be subject to the terms and conditions of the original lease 
and such further terms and conditions as the assembly may deem appropriate. In the event of Landlord 
approval, a copy of the sublease shall be filed with the clerk. 

D.10. DEFAULT.   The following shall be events of default: 

D.10.1 Default in Rent.   Failure of Lessee to pay any rent or other charge within ten (10) days 
after it is due. 

D.10.2. Default in Other Covenants.  Failure of Lessee to comply with any term or condition or 
fulfill any obligation of this lease (other than the payment of rent or other charges) within twenty 
(20) days after written notice by Landlord specifying the nature of the default with reasonable 
particularity. If the default is of such a nature that it cannot be completely remedied within the 20- 
day period, Lessee shall be in compliance with this provision if Lessee begins correction of the 
default within the 20-day period and thereafter proceeds with reasonable diligence and in good faith 
to effect the remedy as soon as practicable. 

D.10.3. Insolvency.  Insolvency of Lessee; an assignment by Lessee for the benefit of creditors; 
the filing by Lessee of a voluntary petition in bankruptcy; an adjudication that Lessee is bankrupt or 
the appointment of a receiver of the properties of Lessee; the filing of any involuntary petition of 
bankruptcy and failure of Lessee to secure a dismissal of the petition within 30 days after filing; 
attachment of or the levying of execution on the leasehold interest and failure of Lessee to secure 
discharge of the attachment or release of the levy of execution within 10 days shall each constitute a 
default. If Lessee consists of two or more individuals or business entities, the events of default 
specified in this subsection shall apply to each individual unless within 10 days after an event of 
default occurs, the remaining individuals produce evidence satisfactory to Landlord that they have 
unconditionally acquired the interest of the one causing the default. If this lease has been assigned, 
the events of default specified shall apply only with respect to the entity then exercising the rights 
of Lessee under this lease. 



12 

D.10.4. Abandonment.  Lessee’s failure to occupy the Property for one or more of the purposes 
permitted under this lease, for at least thirty (30) days per year, unless such failure is excused under 
other provisions of this lease, shall constitute abandonment.   

D.10.5. Failure to Comply with Code and Regulations. Failure to comply with all laws, 
regulations, and rules and laws described below shall constitute a violation of the lease. 

D.10.5.a.  The lessee shall comply with all regulations, rules, and the code of the 
borough, and with all state and federal regulations, rules, and laws, as the code or any 
such rules, regulations, or laws may affect the activity upon or associated with the 
Property. 

D.10.5.b.  The lessee shall comply with all provisions of the code which are promulgated 
for the promotion of sanitation, life safety, and public health. The leased premises shall 
be kept in a neat, clean, and sanitary condition, and every effort shall be made to prevent 
pollution. 

D.10.5.c.  Fire Protection. The lessee shall take all reasonable precautions to comply with 
provisions of state law and borough code applicable to the area wherein the leased 
premises are located. Failure to do so shall constitute a violation of the lease. 

D.11.  REMEDIES FOR DEFAULT 

D.11.1. Termination.  In the event of a default this lease may be terminated at the option of 
Landlord by written notice to Lessee. If the lease should be terminated because of any breach by the 
Lessee, the annual rental payment last made by the lessee shall be forfeited and retained by the 
Landlord. 

D.11.2. Entry and Re-Entry. In the event the lease is terminated, or in the event that the 
Property, or any part thereof, are abandoned by the Lessee during the term, the Landlord or its 
agents, servants, or representatives may, immediately or any time thereafter, re-enter and resume 
possession of the Property or such part thereof, and remove all persons and property therefrom either 
by summary proceedings or by a suitable action or proceeding at law without being liable for any 
damages therefor. No re-entry by the Landlord shall be deemed an acceptance of a surrender of the 
lease. 

D.11.3. Damages.  In the event of termination or retaking of possession following default, 
Landlord shall be entitled to recover immediately, without waiting until the due date of any future 
rent or until the date fixed for expiration of the lease term the loss of rental from the date of default 
until a new Lessee is, or with the exercise of reasonable efforts could have been, secured and paying 
rent. 

D.11.4. Landlord's Right to Cure Defaults.  If Lessee fails to perform any obligation under this 
lease, Landlord shall have the option to do so after ten (10) days' written notice to Lessee. All of 
Landlord's expenditures to correct the default shall be reimbursed by Lessee on demand. Such action 
by Landlord shall not waive any other remedies available to Landlord because of the default. 

D.11.5. Remedies Cumulative.  The foregoing remedies shall be in addition to and shall not 
exclude any other remedy available to Landlord under applicable law. 



13 

D.12. CANCELLATION AND FORFEITURE 

D.12.1 This lease may be canceled in whole or in part at any time, upon written agreement by the 
lessee and the borough assembly. 

D.12.2 Any lease of lands used for an unlawful purpose may be terminated by the borough 
assembly. 

D.12.3 If the Lessee shall default in the performance or observance of any of the lease terms, 
covenants, or stipulations, or the terms of this chapter, or any applicable ordinance of the borough, 
and said default continues for 30 calendar days after service of written notice by the Landlord on the 
Lessee without remedy by Lessee of the default, the assembly shall take such action as is necessary 
to protect the rights and the best interests of the Landlord, including the exercise of any or all rights 
after default permitted by the lease. No improvements may be removed by Lessee or any other 
person during any time the lessee is in default. 

D.12.4 Failure to make substantial use of the leased premises, consistent with the proposed use, 
within one year shall, with the approval of the assembly, constitute grounds for cancellation. This 
time period may be extended by the assembly by resolution 

D.13.  EXPIRATION OF LEASE 

D.13.1 Expiration of Lease. Unless the lease is renewed or sooner terminated as provided 
herein, the lessee shall peaceably and quietly leave, surrender, and yield up unto the borough the 
Property on the last day of the term of the lease. 

D.13.2 Disposition of Improvements.  All dock facilities, fill and other improvements 
constructed or purchased on the Property by Lessee may within 60 calendar days after the 
termination of the lease be removed by the lessee; provided, that the Borough Assembly may 
extend the time for removing such improvements in cases where hardship is proven. All periods of 
time granted Lessee to remove improvements are subject to Lessee’s paying to the borough pro 
rata lease rentals for said periods. If any improvements and/or chattels are not removed within the 
time allowed, such improvements and/or chattels shall revert to, and absolute title shall vest in, the 
Landlord.  

D.14. MISCELLANEOUS 

D.14.1 Written Waiver.  The receipt of rent by Landlord with knowledge of any breach of the 
lease by the Lessee or of any default on the part of the Lessee in observance or performance of any 
of the conditions or covenants of the lease shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any provision of 
the lease. No failure on the part of the Landlord to enforce any covenant or provision therein 
contained, nor any waiver of any right thereunder by Landlord unless in writing, shall discharge or 
invalidate such covenants or provisions or affect the right of Landlord to enforce the same in the 
event of any subsequent breach or default. The receipt by Landlord of any other sum of money 
after the termination, or after the giving by Landlord of any term demised, or after the giving by 
Landlord of any notice thereunder to effect such termination, shall not reinstate, continue, or 
extend the resultant term therein demised, unless so agreed to in writing and signed by the borough 
mayor. 

D.14.2 Attorney Fees.  If suit or any action is instituted in connection with any controversy 
arising out of this lease, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, in addition to costs, such 
sum as the court may adjudge reasonable as attorney fees at trial, on petition for review, and on 



14 

appeal. 

D.14.3 Notice or Demand. Any notice or demand, which under the terms of  this lease or under 
any statute must be given or made by the parties thereto, shall be in writing and be given or made 
by registered or certified mail, addressed to the other party at the address of record. However, 
either party may designate in writing such new or other address to which such notice or demand 
shall thereafter be so given, made, or mailed. A notice given hereunder shall be deemed delivered 
when deposited in the U.S. mail enclosed in a registered or certified mail prepaid envelope 
addressed as herein provided. 

D.14.4 Succession.  Subject to the above-stated limitations on transfer of Lessee's interest, this 
lease shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors and 
assigns. 

D.14.5 Entry for Inspection.  The lessee shall allow an authorized representative of Landlord to 
enter the leased land at any reasonable time for the purposes of inspecting the land and 
improvements thereon. 

D.14.6    Audit.  Landlord shall have the right to audit Lessee’s records and to require Lessee to 
prepare summaries or reports from its records to determine compliance with the payment terms of 
this Agreement. 

D.14.7 Interest on Rent and Other Charges.  Any rent or other payment required of Lessee by 
this lease shall, if not paid within twenty (20) days after it is due, bear interest at the rate of ten 
percent (10%) per annum from the due date until paid, as additional rent. 

D.14.8 Proration of Rent.  In the event of commencement or termination of this lease at a time 
other than the beginning or end of one of the specified rental periods, for a reason other than 
breach of Lessee, then the rent shall be prorated as of the date of commencement or termination 
and in the event of termination for reasons other than default, all prepaid rent shall be refunded to 
Lessee or paid on its account; provided, however, that in the event that the lease should be 
terminated because of any breach by Lessee, as herein provided, the annual rental payment last 
made by Lessee shall be forfeited and retained by Landlord. 

D.14.9 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence of the performance of each of Lessee's 
obligations under this lease. 

D.14.10 Rights of Mortgagee or Lienholder. In the event of cancellation or forfeiture of a lease 
for cause, the holder of a properly recorded mortgage, conditional assignment, or collateral 
assignment shall be given a duplicate copy of any notice of default in the same manner as notice is 
given the Lessee; provided, that such mortgagee has given the borough clerk notice of such 
mortgage and the mortgagee’s address. 

 D.14.11 Use of Material. All oil, gas and other minerals and all deposits of stone, earth or gravel 
 valuable for extraction or utilization are reserved by the Landlord and shall not be removed from 
 the Property. The Lessee shall not sell or remove for use elsewhere any timber, stone, gravel, peat 
 moss, topsoil, or any other material valuable for building or commercial purposes; provided, 
 however, that material required for the development of the leasehold may be used, if its use is first 
 approved by the borough assembly in writing. 

 D.14.12 Rights-of-Way.   Landlord expressly reserves the right to grant easements or rights-of-
 way across the Property if it is determined in the best interest of the Landlord to do so. If Landlord 
 grants an easement or right-of-way across any of the Property, Lessee shall be entitled to damages 



15 

 for all lessee-owned improvements destroyed or damaged. Damages shall be limited to 
 improvements only and loss shall be determined by fair market value. Annual rentals may be 
 adjusted to compensate the lessee for the loss of use. 

 D.14.13   Permits.  Lessee shall make no temporary or permanent improvements on the Property 
 of any kind without first obtaining all permits required by federal, state and local law. 

 D.14.14  No Warranty. Landlord does not warrant by its classification or leasing of the Property 
 that the Property is suited for the use authorized under the lease and no guaranty is given or 
 implied that it will be profitable to employ the Property to said use. 

D.14.15 Applicable Law. This lease shall be governed, construed, performed, and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Alaska. 

D.14.16 Exclusive Venue.  Any lawsuit brought by either Landlord or Lessee to enforce, 
interpret, or apply this lease may only be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in Juneau, 
Alaska, and Landlord and Lessee hereby consent to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of such 
court. 

D.14.17 Entire Agreement. This lease embodies the entire agreement and understanding between 
the parties and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, written or oral, related to the 
subject matter of this lease. 

D.14.18 Amendment. This lease may not be modified orally or in any manner other than by 
agreement in writing signed by all parties in interest or their successors in interest pursuant to 
resolution of the borough assembly. 

D.14.19 Severability. In the event any provision, or any portion of any provision of this lease is 
held invalid, the other provisions of this lease and the remaining portion of said provision, shall not 
be affected thereby, and shall continue in full force and effect. 

D.14.20 Relationship of Parties. Nothing contained in this lease shall be deemed or construed by 
the parties, or by any third person, to create the relationship of principal and agent or of partnership 
or of joint venture or of any association between Landlord and Lessee. 

D.14.21 Authority to Bind.  The individuals signing this Lease on behalf of Landlord and Lessee 
represent and warrant that they are empowered and duly authorized to bind Landlord or Lessee to 
this Lease according to its terms. 

D.14.22 Headings. Any headings used in this lease are for convenience only and do not define or 
limit the scope of this lease. 

D.14.23 Counterparts. This lease may be executed in counterparts (including by electronic 
transmission), each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute 
one and the same instrument. 

D.15. MEDIATION  

It is the intent of the parties that any unresolved dispute relating to or arising out of this lease be settled 
first by diligent and good faith negotiation. In the event the parties are not able to negotiate a settlement, 
the parties agree to make a diligent and good faith effort to mediate their dispute before a mutually 
acceptable mediator. Notice of demand for mediation must be made within a reasonable period of time 



16 

after the dispute or controversy has arisen and shall be in writing. If the non-demanding party fails to 
respond within 30 days of the demand or refuses to participate in mediation, the demanding party may 
proceed with pursuing arbitration. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this lease the date and year first above 
written. 

Landlord: Lessee: 
HAINES BOROUGH ALASKA MARINE LINES, INC. 

By_______________________________ By_______________________________ 
 Its_______________________________   Its______________________________ 

Attest: 

By_______________________________ By_______________________________ 
 Its_______________________________   Its______________________________ 



17 

Exhibit 1. Subject Tidelands Map 



18 

Exhibit 2. Proposed Improvements 



Exhibit 3- Uplands Area Leased



Lutak Dock Work 

Demo Garage & Concrete, Relocate Container $30,000 

Yard Clean Up and Salvage $5,000 

Remove Old RoRo $5,000 

Remove Tower $10,000 

New Electical Sevice $50,000 

Lighting & Security Camaras $25,000 

Fence/Gate Removal and Installation $40,000 

Water/Sewer $30,000 

Launch Ramp Parking Dirt Work/Signs $25,000 

Engineering Services/Survey $30,000 

Security Barriers $10,000 

Total - 260,000 

Exhibit 4 - Work to be done by Landlord







































































































































 
 

INTERIM MANAGER'S REPORT 
 
 
 
DATE: June 18, 2020 
TO: Mayor and Borough Assembly   
FROM:   Alekka Fullerton, Interim Borough Manager 
 
Direction to the Manager from May 26, 2020 Meeting: 
 

1. Motion: THOMAS moved to “Direct the Manager to look into removal of the car at 5 mile Haines 
Highway,” and the motion carried unanimously. 
 Progress: Car was retrieved by the Public Works Dept on May 27. 
 
2. Motion: JOSEPHSON moved to “Direct the Manager to begin looking at a contract to hire a land 
manager for land sales to assist in Borough land sales,” and the motion carried unanimously. 
 Progress: Key staff have been assembled and the first meeting was held June 18 (after 
 the publication of this packet).  Update will be provided at the Assembly meeting. 
 
3. Motion: JOSEPHSON moved to “Direct the Manager to move forward to sell the Human Resource 
building,” and the motion carried unanimously. 
 No progress yet. 

 
4. Motion: LAPP moved to “Direct the Borough Manager to start negotiating with AIA to obtain clear 
title to the Chilkat Center,” and the motion carried unanimously. 
 Progress:  I have reached out to Lee Heinmiller to both make sure he is who I should be 
 talking to with respect to AIA and to start the conversation. 

 

Administration 

 Planning and Zoning Technician.  Libby Jacobson started Tuesday June 16- welcome to 
the team Libby! 

 EOC Townhall Meeting. We added Facebook live as an additional mechanism to reach 
Haines Borough residents.  16 people watched the feed.  We will be adding this for 
Assembly meetings as well. 

 Census: Haines Response rate has increased to 27%.  It is a personal goal of mine to 
exceed Juneau’s 62.9%.  Petersburg was the winner of the weekly “challenge” with a 24% 
surge last week.  Come on Haines! 

 Elections:  I want to remind you that any propositions the Assembly would like to see on 
the October 6, 2020 ballot need to be introduced as ordinances by July 28. 

 Furlough: As part of the budgetary process, a one week furlough was included for all 
regular full-time and part-time employees.  The Administration is thankful to all borough 
employees as well as the Local 71 Union for understanding that we are all in this budget 
crisis together.  The administration expects that many employees will take their furlough 
week in July so they are eligible for unemployment compensation. 

Finance  

 Insurance – Unfortunately our Insurance premiums have increased by 22% for the next 
year.  We anticipated at 10% increase but did not foresee 22%. 

8A



6/18/20 Interim Manager Report - 2 | P a g e  

 New Timekeeping Software.  In an ongoing effort to become more efficient, the Finance 
Department has rolled out their new timekeeping software to mechanize timesheets and 
paystubs. 

 

Fire Department 
 

 Ambulance - The Fire Department is ordering a new ambulance with CARES Act money as 
authorized by the Assembly at the last meeting. 

 Emergency Hire - The Fire Department will be advertising soon for a temporary EMS staff 
member. 

 Nightly Duty Crews- Assignment of responders to nightly duty crews has been successful 
for the department. 

 Wildland Fires- Fire season is upon us.  Even though SE Alaska was exempted from the 
state-wide burn ban, please be very careful when burning and make sure you have a burn 
permit in place and follow all of the provisions of that burn permit. 

 Driver Certification Program – The Department will offer another driver certification 
program to increase the pool of drivers on department equipment. 

 Monday Training/Meetings – The Fire Department will resume its Monday 
training/meetings next week in the ambulance bay (equipment will be moved outside) to 
accommodate social distancing. 

Lands-Assessment-Planning & Zoning 

 Certified Tax Roll: Our Assessor has completed the certified tax roll- the property tax bills 
will be sent by July 1, 2020.   

 Borough Land Sales: Per Assembly request, key team members have started meeting to 
discuss Borough Land Sales—our first meeting is this week and I will be able to provide an 
update at the meeting. 

Library 

 
 The Library continues to operate with social distancing precautions in place.   

 
 Online programming continues to be very popular, and Library programs are being made 

available on demand.   
 

 The first 100,000 pages have been read in Haines’ "Together, Haines Reads A Million!" -
congratulations to the winners of the first random drawing, Lizi Wirak and Reina Rowley!   

Parks and Recreation 

 Trails - Haines Huts and Department of Forestry are looking to apply for a $75,000.00 
grant to secure easements for the seven-mile saddle trail (Ripinski).  The Trail passes 
through MHT, UA and BLM land.  I have confirmed that the $3,750 required match is 
available from previously dedicated CIP funds for this purpose.   

Police Department  

 The Police Department has been working with ADF&G with respect to the bears in town. 

 Thank you! To the Haines Police Department for their part in keeping 43 g. of 
methamphetamine out of our community! 

 



6/18/20 Interim Manager Report - 3 | P a g e  

Ports and Harbors 

 Lutak Dock  

o Roro: Updated Appraisal.  The updated appraisal has been received and is in your 
packet.  There was no change to value. 

o Delta Western Diesel spill at the Tank Farm. Delta Western experienced a diesel 
leak in one of their tanks.  Cleanup and recovery work is being done under a cleanup 
plan and third-party work plan approved by the Alaska Department of Environmental 
Conservation (ADEC).  All waste is being managed in accordance with Federal and 
State regulations and will require ADEC approval.  At this point, none of the impacted 
materials are anticipated to remain in Haines. Shawn Bell, Harbormaster, has 
inspected the tank farm this week and is satisfied with the level of care and the 
protective measures put in place. State and federal regulatory agencies appear to have 
the accident well in hand and Delta Western is doing a good job communicating with 
the Borough.  The tank that failed was due to be inspected in October of this year- the 
others currently in use have been inspected more recently.  All tanks have been 
accelerated to a shorter inspection period (from 10 years to 5 years).  The secondary 
containment has been re-inspected since the accident and is again approved for use. 

 Sport Ramp Project 

o Hamilton has been working to minimize the community disruption due to noise, 
however, their barge must take advantage of high tides to move equipment and 
materials.  The community’s patience and understanding with respect to noise is 
appreciated. 

Public Facilities 
 

 Current projects: 
 

o Small Tracts/Mud Bay Road/3rd Avenue AC Pipe Replacement- We will bring a 
Resolution to award Ad Alt 3 to include 3rd Avenue as soon as we have a loan 
commitment in place. 

o Harbor Diesel Tanks Replacement – Bid opening will be June 19, 2020. 
o Haines Public Safety Apparatus Bay Door – Bid opening will be June 24, 2020. 

Tourism 

 Visitor Center. Visitor center contacts have increased. 

 Royal Carribbean.  Steve continues to work on a preferential birthing agreement with 
RCCL. 



June 15, 2020 

 TO: Haines Borough Assembly & Mayor, Jan Hill  
Cc:  Fullerton, Acting Borough Manager 

Jila Stuart, Chief Fiscal Officer 

FROM: Dean Olsen 
 Haines Borough Assessor 

RE: 2020 Certified Tax Roll 

Assembly & Honorable Mayor Hill, 

The chart below outlines the taxable Real Property by district including “Required Exemptions” per 
HBC 3.70.030 & “Local Exemptions” per HBC 3.70.040.  

2020 Tax Year 

Tax District  LAND  BUILDING  TOTAL 

Required & 
Local 
Exemptions 

Total Less 
Exemptions 

F.D. #1  6,956,800 8,453,400 15,410,200 ‐1,054,700  14,355,500

F.D. #2  6,154,700 6,282,500 12,437,200 ‐1,343,700  11,093,500

F.D. #3  20,823,700 18,753,700 39,577,400 ‐5,122,400  34,455,000

F.D. #4  18,380,500 17,128,600 35,509,100 ‐4,202,300  31,306,800

 BOROUGH 
(REMOTE)  21,058,900 16,566,200 37,625,100 ‐1,066,600  36,558,500

TOWNSITE  88,277,300 147,387,800 235,665,100 ‐29,471,800  206,193,300

TOTAL BOROUGH  161,651,900 214,572,200 376,224,100 ‐42,261,500  333,962,600

I, Dean M. Olsen, duly appointed and acting assessor of the Haines Borough do hereby certify 
as follows: 

This is the Real Property Assessment Roll for the Haines Borough. To the best of my 
knowledge and ability it is the complete, true and accurate roll of all real property declared from 
within the Corporate Limits of the Haines Borough. 

Witness my hand and official seal of the Haines Borough this fifteenth day of 
June, 2020 
Sincerely, 

Dean M. Olsen ACAA III 
Assessor 
Haines Borough, Haines Alaska 

Haines Borough Lands & Assessing Department 
P.O. BOX 1209 
HAINES, AK  99827 
(907) 766-6400     * FAX (907) 766-2716 

8B



 
June 17, 2020 

Museum Director’s Report for April and May 2020 
 
What the Director did in April/May: 

 Wrote the following grants: 
o Alaska Humanities Forum (received) 
o NEH Cares (received) 
o Westaf Cares (pending) 
o AK Can Do Fund (denied) 

 Received the Museums Alaska Collections Management Grant to keep funding archives upgrades 
 Researched and produced 3 KHNS history talks.  
 Mentored staff – working with Jeanette, Regi, Zack, Kimothy as they had questions on projects they were 

undertaking or completing. 
 Held twice weekly Zoom staff meetings. 
 Attended 3 board meetings. 
 Completed four payrolls. 
 Concentrated on FY21 budgets for personnel, operations, and CIP, including three revisions by Assembly. 
 Continued History Tidbits live streaming on Facebook on Wednesdays and Fridays. 16 completed in March 

and April: 
o April Fools 
o 1900 Census 
o Medical Care 
o AK Women and the Vote 
o Cables and Communication 
o Dip Nets and Eulachon Runs 
o Agricultural Endeavors 
o Animal Husbandry 
o Fire Safety 

o Military Emergency Rations 
o Shipwrecks and Relics 
o Sled Dogs and Pack Animals 
o Analysis of Formline 
o Chilkat Blankets and Weaving 
o Flying in the Chilkat Valley 
o Haines Strawberry Festival 
o Paul Piedad 

 3,343 views of History Tidbits in April and May 
 Attended far too many assembly meetings, finance committee meetings and COWs. 
 Attended numerous Corona Virus meetings, local, state-wide and national 
 Attended weekly Museums Alaska meetings 
 Attended weekly and twice weekly Cuseum training sessions in COVID response for museums 
 Attended one Chamber luncheon (virtual) 
 Oversaw budget and expenditures, monitoring closely. 
 Renegotiated Alaska Suffrage Star exhibit loan to extend through June. 

 
Sincerely, 

  

8C



 
Summary of Museum’s May Accomplishments 

 
Exhibits: 

 Art & Wellness: Continued in the Clinic exam rooms. 
 Wrote policies for safe exhibition and visitation of Alaska Suffrage Star exhibit. 
 Set up Alaska Suffrage Star exhibit. Realigned gallery for safe entry and barriers for staff. 

  
Fundraisers 

 Sold Anway Strawberry Starts ($517) 
 Put Museum Store online. 

Collections/Archives: 
 Research Requests: 4 Research requests were fulfilled.  

 Two KHNS History Talks. 

 27 items updated and cataloged in database 

 Zack James returned to the building to work on collections and reference requests. 

Personnel: 
 Began returning to the building in a measured manner: Zack James and Helen Alten first. Regi 

Johanos set up the exhibit. We staggered our time so there was minimal staff overlap. 

Grants:  
 Completed National Endowment for the Humanities CARES grant to fund 6 months of three 

positions: Zack, Regi and Jeanette. (Submitted May 11) 
 Completed WESTAF CARES grant to fund utilities (Submitted May 18) 
 Completed AK Can Do Grant to fund operations (Submitted May 14)  

 
Programming 
Significant time was spent on digital programming: 

 Continued creating coloring book pages 
 Created our first matching game online 
 Continued History Tidbits on Facebook Live (includes 

research, writing, design and presentation) 
 Regular posts on Instagram and Facebook 
 Continued posting to Youtube Channel 
 Weekly Mailchimp E-Newsletters 

 
Social Media Statistics on the next two pages. 
 

 
  



Social Media Marketing & Virtual Programs Stats - May 
Facebook (excludes History Tidbits – See additional stats)  

- 19  posts  
- Total Reach: 5,114, Total Engagement: 714.  

Engagement Rate: 13.96%  
o Reach and Engagement up from April 2020 
o Benchmarks: Average Facebook engagement rate for non-profits is 

0.12%. Institutional benchmarks: <1% unsuccessful (note higher than 
industry average), <5% moderate, >5% very good. See spreadsheet below 

-  Most engaging post:  Float plane disembarking (historic photo)  
 
Instagram  

- 11 posts (most overlapping content with Facebook 
- Total Reach: 1,786, Total Engagement: 146.  

Engagement Rate: 8.18%  
o Reach lower but Engagement higher than April 2020 
o Benchmarks: Average Instagram engagement rate for non-profits is 

1.75%. Institutional benchmarks: <2% unsuccessful (note higher than 
industry average), <5% moderate, >5% very good. See spreadsheet below 

-  Most engaging post:  Josephine Crumine Dog Portrait  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  



MailChimp 
- 4 Campaigns. Primary focus on #MuseumFromHome 
- 25.70% Engagement Rate (Opens).  Lower than April 2020 
- This is above the benchmark for non-profits from 2019 (25.17%). 

The official 2020 benchmark has not been published by MailChimp, 
but suggests that the new average engagement/open rate for non-
profits is around 39.4%. Our institutional goal for the next few 
months is to maintain a rate about 25.17%, with an increase 
towards 30% open rate. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
History Tidbit Video Stats (Facebook Live Video) 

- 8 History Tidbit Virtual Programs (7 staff curated, 1 guest speaker) 
- Topics: Military Emergency Rations, Shipwrecks, Sled Dogs & Pack Animals, Formline Design, Chilkat 

Blankets (Guest Speaker), Flying / Airlines, Strawberry Festival, Paul Piedad 
- Total Reach: 4,678, Total Views: 1,783, Total Engagement (Active Audience): 541  

o NOTE: Total Views includes shorts views (3s, 10s, etc.) and is therefore not the best indicator for 
success of the program. The total engagement shows how many people engaged with the video and 
watched for a significant amount of time. This is the closest parallel to regular visitor counts for 
non-virtual events.  

- Engagement Rate: 6.4% (down from April 2020 but still in good range >5%) 
- Most Popular Tidbit: Chilkat Blanket (Guest Speaker) 

 

 
 

 

  



 

 
Summary of Museum’s April Accomplishments 

 
Exhibits: 

 Art & Wellness: Continued in the Clinic exam rooms. 
  
Collections/Archives: 

 Research Requests: 2 Research requests were fulfilled.  

 History Talk: Researched and produced two KHNS history talks 

 Completed the collections policies and procedures using AAM guidelines in preparation for 

accreditation visit 

Grants:  
 Completed Alaska Humanities Forum Grant (Completed 4/28) 

 
Personnel 

 Regi Johanos attended an on-line training course on writing exhibit labels. 
 Zack James attended an on-line training course on archives management.  

Programming 
 
Significant time was spent on digital programming: 

 Produced our first coloring book pages 
 Continued History Tidbits on Facebook Live (includes 

research, writing, design and presentation) 
 Daily posts on Instagram and Facebook 
 Started a Youtube Channel 
 Weekly Mailchimp E-Newsletters 

 
Social Media Statistics on the next two pages. 
 
 
  



Social Media Marketing & Virtual Programs Stats - April 
Facebook (excludes History Tidbits – See additional stats)  

- 21 posts  
- Total Reach: 3,367, Total Engagement: 367.  

Engagement Rate: 10.90%  
o Engagement up from March 2020 
o Benchmarks: Average Facebook engagement rate for non-profits is 

0.12%. Institutional benchmarks: <1% unsuccessful (note higher than 
industry average), <5% moderate, >5% very good. See spreadsheet 
below 

-  Most engaging post:  History Tidbit Census Promo  
 
Instagram  

- 20 posts (most overlapping content with Facebook 
- Total Reach: 1,995, Total Engagement: 122.  

Engagement Rate: 6.12%  
o Benchmarks: Average Instagram engagement rate for non-profits is 

1.75%. Institutional benchmarks: <2% unsuccessful (note higher than 
industry average), <5% moderate, >5% very good. See spreadsheet 
below 

-  Most engaging post:  Museum Sunshine  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  



MailChimp 
- 5 Campaigns. Primary focus on #MuseumFromHome 
- 28.14% Engagement Rate (Opens).  This is above the 

benchmark for non-profits from 2019 (25.17%). The 
official 2020 benchmark has not been published by 
MailChimp, but suggests that the new average 
engagement/open rate for non-profits is around 
39.4%. Our institutional goal for the next few months 
is to maintain a rate about 25.17%, with an increase 
towards 30% open rate. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
History Tidbit Video Stats (Facebook Live Video) 

- 9 History Tidbit Virtual Programs (8 staff curated, 1 guest speaker) 
- Topics: April Fools, 1900 Census, Medical Care, AK Suffrage (Guest speaker), Phones & Communication, 

Agriculture, Animal Husbandry, and Fire Safety 
- Total Reach: 4,678, Total Views: 1,783, Total Engagement (Active Audience): 541  

o NOTE: Total Views includes shorts views (3s, 10s, etc.) and is therefore not the best indicator for 
success of the program. The total engagement shows how many people engaged with the video and 
watched for a significant amount of time. This is the closest parallel to regular visitor counts for 
non-virtual events.  

- Engagement Rate: 11.6% 
- Most Popular Tidbit: Eulachon Runs 

 



  
5/14/2020 Planning Commission Minutes – Page 1 of 2 

Submitted by Savannah Maidy, Planning and Zoning Tech. 

* 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Haines Borough 

Planning Commission Meeting 
May 14th, 2020 

MINUTES 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE TO THE FLAG: - Chairman Lapham called the meeting to order at 6:30 
p.m. in assembly chambers and led the pledge to the flag. 

2. ROLL CALL: - Present: Chairman- Diana Lapham; Don Turner Jr.; Rob Goldberg; Lee Heinmiller; 
Zack Ferrin; and Jessica Kayser Forster 

STAFF PRESENT: Alekka Fullerton, Acting Borough Manager / Borough Clerk; and Savannah Maidy, 
Planning and Zoning Tech. 

OTHERS PRESENT: Jan Hill, Brenda Josephson, Tiffany Dewitt, and Josh Benassi 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
The following items were on the published consent agenda indicated by an asterisk (*): 

   4 – Approval of Minutes  
Motion: Turner Jr. moved to “Approve the agenda and the consent agenda” and the motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  

The March 12, 2020 Minutes were approved as part of the approval of the consent agenda. 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS: Dewitt, Benassi 
6. ASSEMBLY LIAISON REPORT: Josephson reported that the planner position was eliminated from 

the FY 2021 Budget. 
7. COMMISSION COMMENTS:  Lapham, Turner Jr, Heinmiller, and Goldberg   
8. CHAIRMANS REPORT: None 
9. STAFF REPORT: None 
10. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

A. Conditional Use Permit #19-58: Harry Rietze (4-MBR-05-0220) – Planning commission 
review of Conditional Use Permit #19-58 regarding failure to meet conditions of approval. 

Motion: Turner Jr. moved to “Suspend CUP #19-58 until conditions are satisfied” and the motion carried 
unanimously. 

11. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
A. Findings of Fact – BPS Architects/Dusty Trails - Approval of Findings of Fact. 

Motion: Ferrin moved to “Approve the Findings of Fact for BPS Architects/Dusty Trails Parking Variance” and 
carried unanimously.  

12. NEW BUSINESS: 
A. Historic District/Building Review: None 
B. Haines Borough Code Amendments: None 
C. Project Updates: None 

Approved 
9A



  
5/14/2020 Planning Commission Minutes – Page 2 of 2 

Submitted by Savannah Maidy, Planning and Zoning Tech. 

D. Other New Business: None 
 

13. PUBLIC COMMENTS: Fullerton 
14. COMMISSION COMMENTS: Heinmiller, Lapham, and Kayser-Forster 
15. CORRESPONDENCE: None 
16. SET MEETING DATES: 

A. Regular Meeting: – Thursday, June 11th, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. at Assembly Chambers. 
17. ADJURNMENT: 6:55pm 

 
 



Haines Borough
Assembly Agenda Bill

Agenda Bill No.:  
Assembly Meeting Date:  

Business Item Description: Attachments:
Subject:

Originator:

Originating Department:

Date Submitted:

Full Title/Motion:

Administrative Recommendation:

Fiscal Impact:

Expenditure Required Amount Budgeted Appropriation Required Projected Impact to Future 
Operating Budgets

$ $ $

Comprehensive Plan Consistency Review:
Comp Plan Goals/Objectives:

Consistent: Yes     No

Summary Statement:

Referral:
Referred to: Referral Date:
Recommendation: Meeting Date:

Assembly Action:
Meeting Date(s): Public Hearing Date(s):

Postponed to Date:

 
 

20-1028
6/23/20

equipment for Dispatch Center

Carolann Wooton, Contracts & Grants Administrator

Police/Dispatch

06/17/20

1. Resolution 20-06-871
2. GeoConex proposal

Motion: Adopt Resolution 20-06-871

This resolution is recommended by the Police Chief and Public Facilities Director

35,960.00 See below Reduced maintenance costs

The Haines Dispatch Center has identified the need to upgrade its 911 equipment. The current equipment is
outdated, near the end of its serviceable life, and the current equipment can no longer be supported. The Borough is
required by the State to become Phase II 911 compliant, a process they have been working toward for years.
Replacing the current outdated equipment allows the Borough to immediately become Phase II compliant and the
subscription program helps to ensure we stay compliant. The CIP fund has funds allocated for upgrading 911
Equipment, and E911 funds are collected annually and can be used to cover the cost of the annual subscription.

0

06/23/206/23/20

Authorize the Manager to purchase 911

11A1



HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION No. 20-06-871 

 
A Resolution of the Haines Borough Assembly authorizing the Interim-Borough 
Manager to execute a contract with GeoConex to replace our 911 equipment in 
the Haines Dispatch Center for an amount not to exceed $35,960.00. 

 
WHEREAS, the Haines Dispatch Center 911 equipment is outdated, in need of replacement, 
and unable to be serviced if it fails; and 
 
WHEREAS, updating our current system will help fulfill additional requirements for cell phone 
call location of 911 calls, a requirement for Phase II E911 compliance; and  
 
WHEREAS, GeoConex offers a subscription plan that allows the Borough to keep our equipment 
up to date and serviced for a price not to exceed $35,960 and an annual subscription of $20,000 
therafter; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is sufficient funding in the CIP for E911 Phase II compliance to cover the cost 
of this initial installation and;  
 
WHEREAS, becoming E911 Phase II compliant allows the Borough to utilize E911 funds to 
cover the annual costs of the subscription; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Haines Borough Assembly authorizes the 
Interim-Borough Manager to execute a contract with GeoConex to purchase a new 911 center 
equipment in an amount not-to-exceed $35,960.00. 
 
Adopted by a duly-constituted quorum of the Haines Borough Assembly on this 23rd day of 
June, 2020. 
 
 

      ___________________________ 
Attest:        Janice Hill, Mayor  
 
______________________________ 
Alekka Fullerton, CMC, Borough Clerk 

DRAFT





Haines Borough
Assembly Agenda Bill

Agenda Bill No.:  
Assembly Meeting Date:  

Business Item Description: Attachments:
Subject:

Originator:

Originating Department:

Date Submitted:

Full Title/Motion:

Administrative Recommendation:

Fiscal Impact:

Expenditure Required Amount Budgeted Appropriation Required Projected Impact to Future 
Operating Budgets

$ $ $

Comprehensive Plan Consistency Review:
Comp Plan Goals/Objectives:

Consistent: Yes     No

Summary Statement:

Referral:
Referred to: Referral Date:
Recommendation: Meeting Date:

Assembly Action:
Meeting Date(s): Public Hearing Date(s):

Postponed to Date:

 
 

20-1030
6/23/20

Assembly Ad Hoc CARES Act Committee

Assembly, Finance, Administration

6/09/20

1. Resolution 20-06-872
2. Assembly Ad Hoc CARES Act Committee

Motion: Adopt Resolution 20-06-872

This resolution is recommended by the Interim Manager and Finance Director.

2,146,590 0

The Borough has received $2,146,590 in CARES Act Funding for necessary expenditures incurred due to the
public health emergency with respect to the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19). The Assembly Ad Hoc
Committee has met several times and made recommendations to the Borough Assembly at their 06/09/20 meeting.
Staff was directed to bring a Resolution to the 06/23/20 meeting with the Haines Borough CARES Act spending plan.
*Note this is only for the first payment of the CARES Act funds.

It is anticipated that there will be Assembly discussion regarding proposed amendments to this Resolution.

0

06/23/20

CARES Act Spending Plan

11A2



HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION No. 20-06-872 

 
A Resolution of the Haines Borough Assembly creating a CARES Act 
Spending Plan for the Haines Borough 
 

 
WHEREAS, The Haines Borough has received $2,146,590 of CARES Act money for the first 
payment from the state; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Haines Borough has been awarded a total of $4,007,216.22 for costs that 
are for necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to 
the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) from the Alaska Department of Commerce, 
Community and Economic Development (hereinafter “Department”); and  
 
WHEREAS, The Haines Borough is expecting two more payments of $930,313.11; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Assembly Ad Hoc CARES Act Committee has made recommendations to the 
Haines Borough Assembly; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Haines Borough Assembly adopted the recommendations of the Ad Hoc 
CARES Act committee at its last meeting on June 9, 2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Haines Borough wishes to provide the above described funds for the 
community of the Haines Borough, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Haines Borough Assembly dedicates CARES 
Act funds as follows: 
 
$275,000 for an ambulance; 
$200,000 for a Morgue; 
$10,000 to keep the Mosquito Lake Community Center open to encourage food security; 
$190,000 for food security; 
$300,000 for Individuals for “Utility” assistance including Water and Sewer, AP&T, IPEC, 
 Delta Western and Moorage Fees. 
$500,000 Economic Assistance to Businesses and Non-profits; 
$671,590 for Haines Borough and EOC Expenses including: 
 $180,000 FY20 Haines Borough Payroll 
 $210,000 FY21 Haines Borough Payroll 
 $50,000 Previously appropriated EOC outreach- PPE, Advertising costs, etc. 
 $65,000 Decontamination Unit 
 $100,000 Asymptomatic Testing 
 $30,590 IT Improvements for Chambers/Public Meetings 
 $36,000 Changes to Facility Safe Delivery of Services 
 
Adopted by a duly-constituted quorum of the Haines Borough Assembly on this 23rd day of 
June, 2020. 

          
___________________________ 

Attest:        Janice Hill, Mayor  
 
______________________________ 
Alekka Fullerton, CMC, Borough Clerk 

Draft 



From: Brenda Josephson
To: Alekka Fullerton; Jila Stuart
Cc: Jerry Lapp; Stephanie Scott
Subject: Cares Act Ad Hoc Committee Meeting Recap
Date: Monday, June 08, 2020 1:19:06 AM

The Cares Act Ad Hoc Committee met on June 4, 2020 at 6:30 PM To discuss funding distribution for the first
payment of $2,146,590.

The Committee recommended establishment of funding activities as follows:

$275,000 - New ambulance for the Haines Volunteer Fire Department.  This amount is based on an estimated cost of
$255,000 for the cost of an ambulance and an estimated shipping cost of $20,000.

$200,000 - Morgue to provide for safe and dignified facilities.

$200,000 - Food Assistance funding to Salvation Army, Senior Center, and other entities.  Committee requests a
requirement to restrict funding recipients to purchase all goods and supplies for food assistance from local vendors.

$300,000 - Utility Assistance for Haines Borough’s Water and Sewer, AP&T, IPEC, Delta Western, or firewood
retailers, and others costs.

$500,000 - Economic Assistance to Businesses including Non-Profit Businesses.  Applicants would need to apply
and demonstrate impact. The distribution could be determined based on 2019 gross revenues as reported on Haines
Borough sales tax reports as reported.  Or other method developed and approved by the Assembly.

$671,590 - Haines Borough & EOC and Other Expenses
a. Changes to facilities to accommodate social distancing and safety for staff and citizens.
b. past and on going staff time responding to the pandemic.
c. Staff time administering the distribution of CARES Act funds.
d. PPE and other equipment for emergency responders.
e. Testing and other medical response recommended by EOC and approved by the Borough Assembly.
f. Other expenses as determined by the Borough Assembly

The Finance Director stated that the auditors have advised that self certification of finance impact would not
acceptable under the terms of the grant.  The Committee requested Administration to develop recommendations for
an application process for assistance.

Other considerations stated in the meeting included the need to consider the funding request from Air Lift
Northwest.  Some individuals pay rent that includes utilities so we should also include rent assistance.  This is the
first round of funding and adjustments to funding levels and needs can occur in future disbursements.

Brenda Josephson

mailto:/O=FIRST ORGANIZATION/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=BRENDA JOSEPHSON83A
mailto:afullerton@haines.ak.us
mailto:jstuart@haines.ak.us
mailto:Jlapp@haines.ak.us
mailto:sscott@haines.ak.us


Haines Borough CARES Act Funding DRAFT Plan for Spending First Disbursement of $2,146,590

Recommendation from  June 4 Ad Hoc Committee Meeting

Ambulance HVFD 275,000$             

Morgue Improvements 200,000               

Food Assistance 200,000               

Utility Assistance 300,000               

Borough & Health 671,590               DRAFT plan for Borough & Health

Small Business Grants 500,000               FY20 Haines Borough Payroll 180,000$             

FY21 Haines Borough Payroll 210,000               

2,146,590$          EOC Outreach , PPE, etc 50,000                 

Mobile decontamination Unit 65,000                 

Changes TBD  to facilitate safe delivery of services 36,000                 

Asymptomatic COVID testing 100,000               

IT Improvements for Chambers / Public Meetings 30,590                 

671,590$             



Haines Borough
Assembly Agenda Bill

Agenda Bill No.:  
Assembly Meeting Date:  

Business Item Description: Attachments:
Subject:

Originator:

Originating Department:

Date Submitted:

Full Title/Motion:

Administrative Recommendation:

Fiscal Impact:

Expenditure Required Amount Budgeted Appropriation Required Projected Impact to Future 
Operating Budgets

$ $ $

Comprehensive Plan Consistency Review:
Comp Plan Goals/Objectives:

Consistent: Yes     No

Summary Statement:

Referral:
Referred to: Referral Date:
Recommendation: Meeting Date:

Assembly Action:
Meeting Date(s): Public Hearing Date(s):

Postponed to Date:

 
 

20-1029
6/23/20

Southeast Road Builders for Piedad Springs Expansion

Contracts & Grants Administrator

Public Facilities

6/23/20

1. Resolution 20-06-873
2. Notice Inviting Bids
3. Bid Results
4. Southeast Road Builders Bid
5. Lakloey, Inc Bid

Motion: Adopt Resolution 20-06-873

This resolution is recommended by the Director of Public Facilities.

176,550.00 See below Reduced maintenance costs

Objective 2B, Pages 56-57

The Borough recently issued a request for sealed bids from qualified, licensed contractors for the Piedad Springs
Expansion project. Two responsive bids were received:

1) Glacier Construction, Inc. dba Southeast Road Builders for $176,550.00 ;
2) Lakloey, Inc for $713,000.00 .

The Director of Public Facilities has reviewed the bids and recommends award to the apparent loan bidder . The
contract will be funded with CIP and CPV funds.

0

06/23/20

Contract with Glacier Construction, dba

11A3



HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION No. 20-06-873 

A Resolution of the Haines Borough Assembly authorizing the 
Borough Clerk to execute a construction contract with Glacier 
Construction, dba Southeast Road Builders for the Piedad Springs 
Expansion for an amount not to exceed $ 176,550.00 

WHEREAS, the Borough recently issued a request for sealed bids from qualified, 
licensed contractors for the Piedad Springs Expansion; and 

WHEREAS, the Borough obtained two responsive bids, one from Glacier Construction Inc. 
dba Southeast Road Builders for $176,550.00; and one from Lakloey, Inc for $713,000; and 

WHEREAS, the total project cost is estimated at $209,510 including design and 
administration; and  

WHEREAS, the Borough appropriated $75,000 of CPV funds in FY20, $45,000 of CPV funds 
in FY21, and $30,000 of Water Enterprise funds for a combined total of $150,000 for the 
project; and  

WHEREAS, the Borough Water Enterprise fund currently has adequate unrestricted cash 
reserves to cover the budgeted shortfall; and 

WHEREAS, the Borough administration will request a budget amendment of $60,000.00 
from the Water Enterprise Fund to complete the project as bid; and 

WHEREAS, this project is expected to (1) reduce operating costs for the utility by 
decreasing reliance on Lily Lake water which is more costly to process, (2) provide 
increased capacity during peak demand months in order to accommodate water sales to 
cruise ships and (3) reduce reliance on Wellfield water resource which will greatly 
reduce water costs; and 

WHEREAS, the Director of Public Facilities has reviewed the bids and recommends 
award to the apparent low bidder, Glacier Construction dba Southeast Road Builders; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Haines Borough Assembly authorizes the 
Interim Manager/Borough Clerk to execute a construction contract with Glacier Construction 
Inc. dba Southeast Road Builders for the Piedad Springs Expansion project for an amount 
not to exceed $176,550.00. 

Adopted by a duly-constituted quorum of the Haines Borough Assembly on this 23rd day of 
June, 2020. 

    ___________________________ 
Attest: Janice Hill, Mayor 

______________________________ 
Alekka Fullerton, CMC,  
Borough Clerk 

Draft 



INVITATION TO BID 

Piedad Springs Expansion 

Issue Date: May 12, 2020 

 Bid Deadline: 3:00pm, Thursday, June 11, 2020 



NOTICE INVITING BIDS AND BIDDER INSTRUCTIONS  
Piedad Springs Expansion

Issue Date: May 12, 2020 

The Haines Borough is soliciting sealed bids from qualified and licensed contractors to perform the work 

for Piedad Springs Expansion. All contractors are required to have a current Alaska Contractor’s License 

and Alaska Business License. A Haines Business License is required prior to contract award. 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK:  

The work consists of upgrading the three existing spring boxes at the Piedad Springs Water Source and 

connecting the two offline spring boxes to the main transmission line.  It includes adding aluminum C 

channel on top of the perimeters of the existing concrete spring boxes, and installing tatch covers and 

overflow pipes on each spring box.  Piping includes installing slotted casing in the two offline spring 

boxes, laying ~400 feet of new 4" HDPE pipe and connecting to the existing ~800 feet of 6" HDPE pipe.  

Valving includes adding shutoff valves at each spring box, and block and bleed valving to be able to 

isolate, shut off and drain the transmission lines. 

RECEIPT OF BIDS / BID DEADLINE: Receipt of Bids will be acknowledged by email response from the 

Borough Clerk. The official time of receipt of bids will be the date and time the email arrives in the 

Borough Clerk’s email inbox. Include in the subject line of your emailed Bid submission: BID FOR: 

HB20-01 PIEDAD SPRINGS EXPANSION 

While  not  required,  it  is  recommended  Bidders  carbon  copy  the  Public  Facilities  Director 

(ecoffland@haines.ak.us) and Contracts & Grants Administrator (cwooton@haines.ak.us) on their 

emailed Bid submission. 

Bid documents delivered by fax, over the phone, in person, or by courier will not be accepted. 

BID OPENING:  Bids will be opened immediately thereafter in by the Borough Clerk, Public Facilities 

Director, and Contracts & Grants Administrator unless otherwise specified. 

BID DOCUMENTS: A Bid packet including instructions, forms, and description of work is available on the 

Haines Borough website: www.hainesalaska.gov/rfps for viewing and printing. 

QUESTIONS: 

Communications relative to this work shall be directed to: 

Carolann Wooton 

Contracts & Grants Administrator 

(907) 766-6409

cwooton@haines.ak.us 

http://www.hainesalaska.gov/rfps
mailto:cwooton@haines.ak.us


Submit Bids to: Due to Covid 19, all bids must be submitted by email.  Electronic  bid  documents  shall  
be  submitted  by email  to  the  Borough  Clerk (afullerton@haines.ak.us)  prior  to  3  p.m.  Alaska  
Time  on  4/30/2020,  or  such  later  time  as  may  be announced by addendum at any time prior to the 
deadline.:  

PROJECT SCHEDULE: The Haines Borough anticipates the following project schedule: 

Request for Bids Issued April 10, 2020 
Receive and Open Bids April 30, 2020 
Borough Assembly Authorization May 12, 2020 
Notice of Intent to Award May 15, 2020 
Notice to Proceed May 18, 2020 (approximate) 
Project Completion September 30, 2020 



NOTICE TO BIDDERS 

PIEDAD SPRINGS EXPANSION
Haines Borough, AK  

Contract No. HB20-02

NOTICE NO.: 

DATE OF NOTICE:  

PREVIOUS NOTICES: 

CURRENT DEADLINE FOR BIDS: 

ISSUED BY:  

TOTAL PAGES IN NOTICE: 

1

June 12, 2020 

0

n/a 

Haines Borough 

2 Pages

DESCRIPTION OF NOTICE: 
This is not an Addendum. The following is provided as supplemental information. All 
items and terms of the Contract remain the same. This notice has been posted online 
at: https://www.hainesalaska.gov/rfps 

This Notice is to post results of the bid opening on June 11, 2020, for the subject 
Project. The bidders and their total bids are summarized in the attached Bid Summary. 

Two Bids were received, and both were deemed responsive. The apparent low bidder is 
Glacier Construction, Inc. dba Southeast Road Builders.  

https://www.hainesalaska.gov/rfps


Pay Item Pay Item Description Pay Unit Quantity Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount

1505.1 Mobilization Lump Sum 1 $28950.00 $28,950.00 $155000.00 $155, 000

1570.1 Erosion Control Plan Lump Sum 1 $1500.00 $1,500.00 $40000.00 $40,000.00

1704.1 Final Clean Up and Site Restoration Lump Sum 1 $8550.00 $8,550.00 $10000.00 $10,000.00

2201.1 Clearing and Grubbing Lump Sum 1 $11850.00 $11,850.00 $52000.00 $52,000.00

2601.1 New 4"0 SDR 11 HDPE Transmission Line Linear Feet 400 $117.50 $47,000.00 $495.00 $198,000.00

2601.2 Upgrade Main Spring Box Each 1 $14,900.00 $14,900.00 $42,000.00 $42,000.00

2601.3 Upgrade Meyers Tunnel Spring Box Each 1 $17250.00 $17,250.00 $49000.00 $49,000.00

2601.4 Upgrade Lower Spring Box Each 1 $17250.00 $17,250.00 $49000.00 $49,000.00

2601.5 Block & Bled Valving at the Tee with 4" Lines from Upper Tunnel and Lower 

Springs

Each 1 $11,700.00 $11,700.00 $41,000.00 $41,000.00

2601.6 Block & Bleed Valving at Junction with 6"  Existing Transmission Line Each 1 $12,100.00 $12,100.00 $42,000.00 $42,000.00

20702.1 Construction Surveying Lump Sum 1 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00

Lakloey, Inc Prepared By: Carolann Wooton

Checked By: Ed Coffland, PE

Total  Bid = $176,550.00 $713,000.00

Bid Schedule Bid Summary By: Haines Borough Glacier Construction Inc. dba 

Southeast Roadbuilders

BID SUMMARY
Project: Piedad Springs Expansion Owner: Haines Borough Contract: HB20-02 Bid Opening Date: 

6/11/2020

6/11/20













































Haines Borough
Assembly Agenda Bill

Agenda Bill No.:  
Assembly Meeting Date:  

Business Item Description: Attachments:
Subject:

Originator:

Originating Department:

Date Submitted:

Full Title/Motion:

Administrative Recommendation:

Fiscal Impact:

Expenditure Required Amount Budgeted Appropriation Required Projected Impact to Future 
Operating Budgets

$ $ $

Comprehensive Plan Consistency Review:
Comp Plan Goals/Objectives:

Consistent: Yes     No

Summary Statement:

Referral:
Referred to: Referral Date:
Recommendation: Meeting Date:

Assembly Action:
Meeting Date(s): Public Hearing Date(s):

Postponed to Date:

 
 

20-1031
6/23/20

under Agriculture, Personal Use

Planning Commission

Lands/Administration

06/12/20

1. Ordinance 20-06-573
2. Planning Commission Request for Action

Motion: Introduce Ordinance 20-06-573 and schedule it for two public hearings 07/14/20 and 07/28/20.

This resolution is recommended by the Interim Manager.

0

The Planning Commission considered comments from the public which led them to recommend a code change
allowing residents to keep small farm animals for personal use in all residential zones irrespective of the size of the
lot.

After the Planning Commission meeting, the Clerk's Office amended the proposed Ordinance to suggest additional
changes for clarity which are consistent with the Planning Commission's intent.

0

7/14/20, 7/28/2006/23/20, 7/14/20, 7/28/20

Code Change to allow small farm animals

11B1



         HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
ORDINANCE No. 20-06-573 

An Ordinance of the Haines Borough amending Haines Borough Code Title 18 
to Allow Small Farm Animals under Agriculture, Personal Use. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY: 

Section 1.   Classification.  This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and 
the adopted amendment shall become a part of the Haines Borough Code. 

Section 2.  Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance or any application thereof 
to any person or circumstance is held to be invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and 
the application to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

Section 3. Effective Date.  This ordinance is effective upon adoption.   

Section 4.      Amendment of Section 18.20.020 Section 18.20.020 of the Haines 
Borough Code is hereby amended, as follows: 

 NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
  STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED  

18.20.020 Definitions – Regulatory. 
“Agriculture, personal use” means a use involving the growing of vegetation or raising of 
animals for beautification, consumption or barter, including: ornamentals, vegetables or the 
keeping of any combination of up to six small farm animals (as described in HBC 
18.60.020(C)(2)) on lots of less than one acre and 12 on lots greater than one acre grown 
for use as food, but which do not produce objectionable odors, noise or nonpoint source 
pollution. Personal use agriculture does not include roosters or the keeping of animals 
capable of growing to 75 pounds or more. Greater numbers of small animals than specified 
herein will be considered animal husbandry and shall be regulated by HBC 18.60.020(C). 

Section 5.      Amendment of Section 18.20.020 Section 18.20.020 of the Haines 
Borough Code is hereby amended to add:  

18.20.020 Definitions – Regulatory. 
“Small Farm Animals” means fowl, rabbits or other small farm animals being raised as a hobby, for 

the production of eggs, butchering, or the use of their fur or pelt, may be kept on any residential lot. 

Section 6.      Amendment of Section 18.60.020(C)(2): Section 18.60.020(C) of the 
Haines Borough Code is hereby amended, as follows:  

18.60.020 Special Approval Criteria 
… 

(C) Animal Husbandry 

… 

 2.  Small Farm Animals. Small farm animals such as fowl, rabbits or other small animals being raised as a 

hobby, for the production of eggs, butchering, or the use of their fur or pelt, may be kept on any lot with 

DRAFT 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 20-06-573 

Page 2 of 2 
 
a total lot area of one‐half acre or more, with at least 500 square feet dedicated to the keeping of the 

animals – including cages and storage buildings. 

… 

ADOPTED BY A DULY CONSTITUTED QUORUM OF THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY THIS __ 
DAY OF _____________, 2020.   

             
        ______________________________ 
ATTEST:       Jan Hill, Mayor 

____________________________ 
Alekka Fullerton, Borough Clerk 

Date Introduced:    __/__/20   
Date of First Public Hearing:    __/__/20 
Date of Second Public Hearing: __/__/20 





         HAINES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
ORDINANCE No. 20-xx-xxx 

An Ordinance of the Haines Borough amending Haines Borough Code Title 
18 Land Use/Development to provide definitions and zoning regulations for 
Agriculture, Personal Use. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY: 

Section 1.   Classification.  This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and 
the adopted amendment shall become a part of the Haines Borough Code. 

Section 2.  Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance or any application thereof 
to any person or circumstance is held to be invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and 
the application to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

Section 3. Effective Date.  This ordinance is effective upon adoption.   

Section 4.      Amendment of Section 18.20.020 Section 18.20.020 of the Haines 
Borough Code is hereby amended, as follows: 

 NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 
  STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED  

18.20.020 Definitions – Regulatory. 
 

“Agriculture, personal use” means a use involving the growing of vegetation or raising of 
animals for beautification, consumption or barter, including: ornamentals, vegetables or the 
keeping of any combination of up to six small animals (as described in 
HBC 18.60.020(C)(2)) on lots of less than one acre and 12 on lots greater than one acre 
grown for use as food, but which do not produce objectionable odors, noise or nonpoint 
source pollution. Personal use agriculture does not include the keeping of animals capable of 
growing to 75 pounds or more. Greater numbers of small animals than specified herein will 
be considered animal husbandry and shall be regulated by HBC 18.60.020(C). 

 

 

 

ADOPTED BY A DULY CONSTITUTED QUORUM OF THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY THIS __ 
DAY OF _____________, 2020.   

             
        ______________________________ 
ATTEST:       Jan Hill, Mayor 

____________________________ 
Alekka Fullerton, Borough Clerk 

Date Introduced:    __/__/20   
Date of First Public Hearing:    __/__/20 
Date of Second Public Hearing: __/__/20 

DRAFT 

https://hainesborough.borough.codes/HBC/18.20.020__c72f41c2b03d245cd387f2ab04aa64ce
https://hainesborough.borough.codes/HBC/18.60.020(C)(2)
https://hainesborough.borough.codes/HBC/18.20.020__0f62a1b6572a867ff08344fcf63320f0
https://hainesborough.borough.codes/HBC/18.20.020__0f62a1b6572a867ff08344fcf63320f0
https://hainesborough.borough.codes/HBC/18.20.020__a91db6ed1c2cbd65632dab318250aed0
https://hainesborough.borough.codes/HBC/18.60.020(C)


Haines Borough
Assembly Agenda Bill

Agenda Bill No.:  
Assembly Meeting Date: 

Business Item Description: Attachments:
Subject:

Originator:

Originating Department:

Date Submitted:

Full Title/Motion:

Administrative Recommendation:

Fiscal Impact:

Expenditure Required Amount Budgeted Appropriation Required Projected Impact to Future 
Operating Budgets

$ $ $

Comprehensive Plan Consistency Review:
Comp Plan Goals/Objectives:

Consistent: Yes     No

Summary Statement:

Referral:
Referred to: Referral Date:
Recommendation: Meeting Date:

Assembly Action:
Meeting Date(s): Public Hearing Date(s):

Postponed to Date:

 20-1027
06/23/20

regarding Emergency Police

Borough Assembly

Borough Assembly

6/9/20

1. Ordinance 20-06-574
2. Resolution 19-11-835S

Motion: Introduce Ordinance 20-06-574 and schedule it for two public hearings 7/14/20 and 7/28/20.

This ordinance is recommended by the Government Affairs and Services Committee.

0 0 Lease approved by later ordinance

Haines Borough Charter Section 6.01 grants the Borough power to provide for emergency dispatch Areawide. The
assembly has directed the manager to have the Police Department respond to urgent calls (defined as imminent
threat to life or property, or an articulable crime in progress) and to allow them to assist both AST and the Fire
Department/EMS as requested.

Resolution 19-11-835S was adopted 12-10-19 and called for the expansion of emergency dispatch to 
include emergency services to be put to the voters at the October 6, 2020 regular election.

This ordinance has been developed by the Government Affairs and Services Committee and is the mechanism to
put the proposition to the voters.

0

GASC
Develop Ordinance to put proposition to the voters. 06/09/20

7/14/20, 7/28/206/23/20, 7/14/20, 7/28/20

Ballot Proposition to Amend Charter

11B2



HAINES BOROUGH 
ORDINANCE No. 20-06-574 

 
An ordinance of the Haines Borough placing a proposition on the October 6, 
2020 Haines Borough General Election ballot to amend Borough Charter 
Section 6 to provide for Police Emergency Response Outside the Townsite 

 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY: 
 Section 1.  Classification.  This ordinance is a non-code ordinance authorizing placing a 

proposed amendment to the Haines Borough Charter on the ballot for the 2020 general 
municipal election. 

 
 Section 2.   Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance or any application thereof to 

any person or circumstance is held to be invalid, the remainder of this ordinance and 
the application to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

 
 Section 3.  Proposed Amendment of Charter Section 6.01.  It is hereby determined to 

be for a public purpose and in the public interest of the Haines Borough to place a 
question on the October 6, 2020 regular Haines Borough General Election ballot that 
would amend the Haines Borough Charter, to add Police Emergency Response Outside 
the Townsite as follows:  
 
NOTE:  Bolded/UNDERLINED ITEMS ARE TO BE ADDED 

STRIKETHROUGH ITEMS ARE DELETED  

Charter Section 6.01 Areawide Powers 
The Haines Borough shall exercise areawide the powers to provide for tax assessment and 
levy; planning, platting, zoning; and education. 

In addition, the borough may exercise on an areawide basis, by ratification of this charter, 
the powers to provide for the following services: 

(1) control of hazardous substances, 
(2) emergency medical services and other medical services, 
(3) emergency dispatch including emergency police and fire response, 

… 

 

Section 4. The Borough shall submit the following proposition to the qualified 
voters of the Haines Borough at the October 6, 2020 Haines Borough General 
Election:  

 
PROPOSITION No. x 

 
AMEND CHARTER 6.01 TO AMEDND THE DEFINITION OF EMERGENCY DISPATCH TO 

INCLUDE EMERGENCY RESPONSE 
 

Shall Section 6.01 of the Haines Borough Charter be amended to 
provide for Emergency Response as well as emergency dispatch? 
 

Draft 



Haines Borough 
Ordinance No. 20-06-574 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Section 5. Amendment of Chapter 2.40.040. Chapter 2.40.040 of the Haines Borough Code 
of Ordinances is amended as follows: 
 

2.40.40 Emergency Police Response 

A. Emergency Police Response outside the Townsite. The police may provide 
emergency response outside of the townsite when, either: 
 

1. There is no Alaska State Trooper (not including a Wildlife Trooper) 
assigned to the Haines Post; or  

2. Pursuant to a mutual aid agreement with the Alaska State Troopers. 

B. The Townsite Area Fund (Fund 02) shall be reimbursed from the General 
Fund (Fund 01) to compensate for emergency response services based on 
actual responses in the prior fiscal year. 

Section 6.  Sections 3, 4 and 5 of this ordinance shall become effective only if the 
proposition described in Section 4 is approved by a majority of the qualified voters 
voting on the proposition at the October 6, 2020 Haines Borough General Election and 
shall take effect thirty days after certification of the results of the election.  
 

ADOPTED BY A DULY CONSTITUTED QUORUM OF THE HAINES BOROUGH ASSEMBLY THIS __ 
DAY OF JULY, 2020. 

      ______________________________ 
       Jan Hill, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
_____________________________ 
Alekka Fullerton, CMC, Borough Clerk 





Mayoral Appointment – 06/23/20 
 

Museum 
Reappointment of Sue Chasen - term ends 11/22 
Appointment of Kim Chetney – term ends 11/22 

Chilkat Center Advisory Board 
 Reappointment of Tara Bicknell - term ends 11/22 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11C1



From: Kelleen Adams
To: Alekka Fullerton
Subject: re: Board seat recommendations
Date: Saturday, June 13, 2020 8:55:17 AM

EXTERNAL EMAIL: Do not open links or attachments unless you recognize the sender and
know the content is safe.

Dear Alekka,
The Haines Sheldon Museum Board of Trustees would like to recommend Sue Chasen and
Kim Chetney to the museum board.
Thank you,
Kelleen Adams
Board President

mailto:kelleenart1@yahoo.com
mailto:afullerton@haines.ak.us






Kim H. Chetney 

PO Box 596 

Haines, Alaska 99827 

kim@vikingcove.com 

(949)412-8358 

 

EDUCATION 

1984 – Scripps College, Claremont, CA, B.A. Psychology 

1986 – Claremont Graduate University, Claremont, CA, M.A. Education 

EXPERIENCE 

Viking Cove Guest Homes 
Haines, AK 
Owner and Operator 2013-present  
 
Entrepreneur in charge of sales, management, and promotion of eleven-acre Alaskan venue for 
group events. Direct communication, facilitation, and coordination of events with clients, 
vendors, contractors, and local businesses. Brand management including social media 
promotion, website design and promotional products and materials. Actively seek to coordinate 
with national and international companies to successfully profile the unique location to 
interested clients.  

National Retirement Partners  
Capistrano Beach, CA  
Event Coordinator 2003-2011 
 
Managed, coordinated, and organized events for National Retirement Partners including 
national conferences held in Hawaii, Dana Point, San Juan Capistrano and Palm Desert, 
California. Directed event planners, met with resort management, and managed details for 
events with 250+ attendees. Oversaw numerous business events for brokers, dealers, and 
company personnel. Brand management including conference brochures, collateral, and company 
promotional materials. 
 
Boys and Girls Club of Capistrano Valley 
San Juan Capistrano, CA  
Fundraiser 1999-2011 
 
Managed, coordinated, and hosted numerous events to raise money for operating costs and to 
help generate 4.2 million for the Capital Campaign to build a new Teen Center. Enlisted 
volunteers, generated enthusiasm in addition to funds and promoted community awareness. 
Host & Coordinator, Holiday Event,1999, 2009; Member, Board of Regents, 2005-2009; 
Member, Capital Campaign for Teen Center, 2007-2009; Chair, Silent Auction, Annual 



Fundraiser, 2004; Chair, Silent Auction, Annual Fundraiser, 2002 
 

Kim H. Chetney 
2 

 
St Margaret’s Episcopal School  
San Juan Capistrano, CA  
Chairperson, Coordinator 
1999-2005 
 
Arts Alliance Fine Arts Festival, Co-Chair, 1999, 2000 Liaison and Member in charge of publicity 
and communication, Arts Alliance, 1999. Coordinated and designed flyers for SMES Arts 
Alliance for the General Meetings and Events Schedules, 1999, 2000 Co-Chair, Fundraiser, 
Organized Vendors for Holiday “Madness” Boutique for the Arts Alliance, 1999. Volunteer, 
Fundraiser, “Hoot & Howl” Tartan Faire, 1999 
Chair, Original Works Yours, 1997 Holiday Event Coordinator, 1999 – 2005 
 
 
San Juan Hills High School, San Juan Capistrano, CA   
Fundraiser, USTA Tennis Coach 2004 - 2009 
 
Rhode Island School of Design Museum Providence, RI  
Teacher, Curatorial Administrative Assistant, Museum Events 1986-1988  
 
Otis Art Institute, Los Angeles, CA  
Intern, Administrative Assistant, Fundraising, Events 1979-1983  
 
Chicago Art Institute, Chicago, IL  
Assistant to the Volunteer Coordinator,1983-1985 Scheduling and training of volunteers. 
 
 
Clear Multiple Subject Teaching Credential 
Issuing Authority: State of California 
Issued Jul 1989 Expires Aug 2024 
Credential ID 081129744 
 

For more info, including skills and endorsements: 

https://www.linkedin.com/in/kimchetney/ 

 

 



From: Tara Bicknell
To: Alekka Fullerton
Cc: Annette Smith
Subject: Bicknell Re-Appointment Request
Date: Tuesday, April 07, 2020 5:06:40 PM

EXTERNAL EMAIL: Do not open links or attachments unless you recognize the sender and
know the content is safe.

Dear Alekka,

In our April 7 meeting, the Chilkat Center Advisory Board unanimously approved a motion to
re-appoint me to the Board, and I would accept a re-appointment should the Borough oblige. 

Please let me know if you need a copy of the motion (minutes are still in draft form), an
application or anything else to make the re-appointment official. 

Many Thanks, 

Tara

mailto:tara.bicknell@gmail.com
mailto:afullerton@haines.ak.us
mailto:annettesmith@aptalaska.net


Notes from the Town Hall – Take Two 

June 17th, 2020 

Meeting began at 6:00 PM with about 35 participants on Zoom and 9 participants on Facebook Live.  

 Recommends being cautious and strict on things we CAN control 

 Encourages messaging campaign and outreach on recommended measures 

 Supports recommendation for added 14‐day quarantine for all travelers 

 Suggestion to develop sub‐categories for the Medium Risk category 

 Question of why the EOC recommended limiting to groups of 10 people when the State 

recommends up to 50 people 

 Agrees with idea to be cautious and strict to keep community from reaching High Risk; focus on 

keeping it at Low 

 Wants to see more masks and more community buy‐in for masks; some businesses are requiring 

masks, this is good 

 For future positive cases, is it possible to notify the community when all tracer contact work is 

complete? 

 Question about self‐tracking social interactions – is there a resource to help track? 

 Agrees with previous comments to be cautious/strict, push messaging 

 Agrees with caution on cruise ships 

 Likes seeing mask wearing in businesses 

 Discussion of 4th of July – Chamber will keep community updated on decision  

 Observation of recent increase in mask wearing, messaging is good, still not enough masks, may 

take Assembly action 

 Feel we are still in the First Wave, more tourist now, not safe yet 

 Masks – have them available everywhere for everyone, use CARES Act money; comparison to 

condoms  

 Masks – start small, maybe ask meeting organizers to require masks 

 Masks – community is diverse, perhaps mask messaging could appeal to all the reasons to wear 

one for the protection of others; suggest using younger people to help with PSAs 

 Masks – make available to everyone 

 Masks – model mask wearing by leaders is good leadership 

 Is there Borough Code on the books already about infectious disease…this could help enact 

measures 

 Masks – seeing more in town, but need to work on businesses to increase masking; feeling 

judged if wearing one, kids too feeling alienated if wearing one 

 Masks are important, make them available, consider Assembly action on this 

 Mask messaging – try making it cool 

 Visit to Anchorage Zoo observation – masks were required and available; storefronts had 

requirements clearly posted 

 KINY is doing regular PSAs, maybe KHNS could too; strongly advise businesses to require masks 

 Shaming doesn’t work, no one is intentionally transmitting the virus, we are all well‐intentioned 

 Hard to feel safe in stores without plexiglass and where it is crowded, staff without masks 

11C2



8:00 PM update on participation – 48 participants on Zoom, 15 on Facebook Live 

 Idea to avoid mask shaming, encourage respect for personal choices. 

 Comparison to smoking and how it used to be accepted and now is not because it was a public 

health issue, not a political issue 

 EMS folks, we need to protect them, it is a small group, fragile organization 

 Thankful for businesses who do mask up, taking initiative  

 Who is on the EOC? 

 Hand sanitizer stations, appreciate businesses offering them outside, perhaps Borough can help 

procure since it is difficult to find supplies 

 Contact tracing – unrealistic to expect people to remember the last 14‐days of contacts, 

consider recommending people keep a daily tracker to help in the future 

 Have been lax on masking myself, but avoiding places as a measure; businesses who require 

masks have made me think of brining one along 

 What is open in town?...updates in newspaper and on website would be helpful to know what is 

open, curbside only, listing businesses who require masks; creative way to encourage masking 

by recognizing those businesses who do  

 Recommendation for consistency in masking/measures between Borough offices and facilities, 

good modelling.  

 Education campaigns – may be outside of the scope of the EOC and Borough, alternative might 

be to shift toward discussion with businesses…incentivize them? 

 Use CARES Act funds to help provide masks, sanitizer, etc. 

 Can you elaborate on the curfew idea? 

 Idea for next Town Hall – What does it look like to live with Covid in Haines? 

 

End of Town Hall.  

 

 

 



HAI NES BOROUGH, ALASKA 
RESOLUTION No. 20-03-854A 

Adopted 4/ 28/ 20 
Amended 5/ 26/ 20 

A Resolution of the Haines Borough Assembly Encouraging that People Traveling 
into the Haines Borough Quarantine Related to COVID-19. 

WHEREAS, to prevent the spread of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) by controlling 
the ingress to Alaska from outside localities, on March 23, 2020 the State of Alaska, 
based on its authority under the Public Health Disaster Emergency Declaration, issued 
Health Mandate 10.1 ordering quarantine of all people arriving in Alaska with exception 
for certain health and critical infrastructure industries, effective 12:01 am March 25, 
2020; and 

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, the Haines Borough Mayor issued a Declaration of 
Emergency for the Haines Borough to alert the public to the seriousness of the risk, and 
provide di rection to sources of information and other available public health resources, 
while the Haines Borough works in cooperation with other local and state agencies 
through the EOC to implement actions and responses to address the probable COVID-19 
outbreak; and 

W HEREAS, on March 24, 2020, the Haines Borough Assembly as the governmental 
entity of a Home Rule Borough, declared a local emergency in response to COVID-19; 
and 

WHEREAS, as of March 23, 2020, the State of Alaska had 36 confirmed cases of COVID-
19; neighboring municipa lity of the City and Borough of Juneau had one confirmed COVID-
19 case and the neighboring City of Whitehorse, Yukon Territory, Canada, had two 
confi rmed COVID- 19 cases; and 

WHEREAS, the Haines Borough is linked to the City and Borough of Juneau by da ily 
commercial air t raffic and regular ferry service; and 

WHEREAS, t his resolution is akin to an emergency declaration and is reasonable and 
necessary under the circumstances to protect t he hea lt h, welfare, and safety of all borough 
residents including our vulnerable elder population; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that, 

I n addition to Health Mandate 10.1 , the Haines Borough Assembly encourages any 
person entering the Haines Borough from outside borough boundaries by marine 
vessel, motor vehicle or airplane to self-quarantine for 14 days upon arrival except 
as provided below: 

(A) Public Health Workers. People per form ing essential public hea lth 
duties shal l quarantine except as necessary to protect the healt h and 
safety of ot hers. 

(B) Critical Business or Entities . People that are engaged in critical 
business, industry or economic sectors as described in Append ix A: 
Haines Borough Critical Business, Industry or Economic Sectors may be 
exempted by the Borough Manager upon the submission and approval of 



Haines Borough 
Resolution No. 20-03-854 

Page 2 of 4 

a written plan of Protection describing protocols and policies that wi ll be 
undertaken to ensure that the entrance of persons will not endanger the 
health and safety of residents or compromise the health of the 
community. Th is Plan of Protection must be submitted at least 24 hours 
prior to the entrance of the employees in the Haines Borough. Exempted 
entities and their employees are still required to comply with all State 
health mandates. 

If a business or entity is not listed in Appendix A, and the business owner or authorized 
agent believes that the business or entity is critical or it is an entity providing critical 
services or functions, the business may request a determination from the Manager, or 
Borough Staff. 

Effective Date and Duration : This Resolu tion shall go into effect April 28, 2020 and will 
terminate on May 26, 2020 unless extended. On May 26, th is Resolution was extended to 
correspond with the State's I nterstate mandate. 

Adopted by a duly-constituted quorum of the Haines Borough Assembly on this 28th day 
of April, 2020 and amended on the 26th day of May, 2020. 

afullerton
Highlight



Haines Borough 
Resolution No. 20-03-854 

Page 3 of 4 

Appendix A. 
Haines Borough Critical Business, Industry or Economic Sectors 

Functioning critical infrastructure is imperative during the response to the COVID-19 
emergency for both public health and safety as well as community well-being. Certain 
critical infrastructure industries have a special responsibility in these times to continue 
operations. At this time, critical industries and entities in Haines include: 

a. "Healthcare Operations" including the clinic, dental emergency services, 
pharmacies, other healthcare facilities, home healthcare services providers, 
mental health providers, consumer health products, or any related and/or 
anci llary healthcare services. " Healthcare Operations" includes veterinary care. 
"Healthcare Operations" does not include fitness and exercise gyms and yoga. 

b. Businesses providing any services or performing any work necessary to the 
operations and maintenance of "Essential Infrastructure," including, but not 
limited to, Ports and Harbors, public works construction, construction of 
housing , airport operations, water, sewer, gas, electrical, mining, logging, 
roads and highways, public transportation, solid waste collection and 
removal, internet, and telecommunications systems (including the provision 
of essential globa l, national, and local infrastructure for computing services, 
business infrastructure, communications, and web-based services). 

c. Financial services sector, banks and insurance companies. 

d. First responders, emergency management personnel, emergency dispatchers, 
court personnel, and law enforcement personnel. 

e. Individuals providing "Essential Governmental Functions". " Essential 
Government Functions" means all services needed to ensure the continuing 
operation of government agencies and provide for the health, safety, and 
welfare of the public. 

f. Grocery stores, supermarkets, food banks, convenience stores, and other 
establishments engaged in the retai l sale of household consumer products 
(such as cleaning and personal care products). 

g. Food and agriculture, cu ltivation, including farming, livestock, and 
fishing; 

h. Businesses that provide social services and other necessities of life for 
economically disadvantaged or otherwise needy individuals; 

1. Newspapers, television, radio, and other media services; 

J. Gas stations and auto-supply, auto-repair, bicycle-repair, and related faci lities; 

k. Hardware stores; Plumbers, electricians, and other service providers who 
provide services that are necessary to maintaining the safety, sanitation, and 



Haines Borough 
Resolution No. 20-03-854 

Page 4 of 4 

essential operation of residences and critical business facilities; 

I. Businesses providing mailing and sh ipping services, including post office boxes; 

m. Educational institutions facilitating distance learning; 

n. Laundromats, dry cleaners, and laundry service providers; 

o. Restaurants, breweries, distilleries and other facilities that prepare and serve 
food, but only for delivery or carry out under the restrictions set forth in 
COVID- 19 Health Mandate 003; 

p. Businesses that supply products needed for people to work from home; 

q. Businesses that supply other essential businesses with the support or 
supplies necessary to operate; 

r. Businesses that transport wholesale goods to retail stores, delivery of fuel, or 
other services directly to residences or other critical industries outlined in this 
health mandate. 

s. Airlines, marine vessels, taxis, and other private transportation business 
providing transportation services; 

t. Residential faci lities and shelters for seniors, adults, and children; 

u. Professional services, such as legal or accounting services, when 
necessary to assist in compliance with legally-mandated activities; 

v. Childcare facilities, subject to new recommendations for increased hygiene and 
social distancing. Childcare faci lities should be used only by those who need 
childcare to work at a critical job. 



12A


	06-23-20 BA Mtg
	3 - Draft Min 06-09-20
	7A- Ord 570- Correcting Title 5 - AB 20-1023
	Ordinance 20-05-570

	7B - Ord 571- Ballot Proposition for Perm Fund - AB 20-1026
	Ordinance 20-05-571

	7C - Ord 572 - Ro-Ro Lease with AML - AB 20-1025
	Ordinance 20-06-572
	Proposed Lease
	Updated Appraisal

	8A - Manager's Report from 06-18-20
	8B - Assessor's Transmittal of 2020 Certified Tax Roll
	8C - Museum Director's Report
	9A - PC Min 5-14-20
	11A1 - Res 871- Contract for 911 System - AB 20-1028
	Resolution 20-06-871
	GeoConex Proposal

	11A2 - Res 872- Spending PLan for CARES Act Funds- AB 20-1030
	Resolution 20-06-872
	Cares Act Ad Hoc Committee Summary
	Spending Plan from 06/09/20 Meeting

	11A3 - Res 873- Award Piedad Springs Expansion Project to SERB - AB 20-1029
	Resolution 20-06-873
	Invitation to Bid
	Bid Summary
	SERB Bid
	Lakloey Bid

	11B1- Ord 573- Allowing Small Farm Animals in all Residential Zones- AB 20-1031
	Ordinance 20-06-573
	PC Action Requet

	11B2 - Ord 574- Charter Amendment for Emergency Services - AB 20-1027
	Ordinance 20-06-574
	Resolution 19-11-835S

	11C1 - Board Appointments
	Museum Board Recommendation
	Sue Chasen
	Kim Chetney

	Chilkat Center Advisory Board

	11C2 - EOC Update and Review of Resolution 20-03-854A 
	Resolution 20-03-854A as amended 5/26/20

	12A - Solicited Letter from Catholi Community Services.pdf
	12A - Solicited letter from Catholic Community Services




